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1.  FOREWORD AND MESSAGE BY 
    THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE COUNCIL
          MS N LICHABA

South Cape TVET College 2016 Annual Report

I take pleasure in presenting the Annual report of South Cape TVET College 
for the year 2016. The aforementioned report takes into account that 
Technical and Vocational Education and Training (TVET) Colleges, as 
part of a dynamic post-school education and training (PSET) system, 
should position themselves strategically in terms of the strategic vision 
and goals of the Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET).  

The Annual Report (AR) is a key platform for reporting on the 
implementation of the strategic vision and goals of the Department 

including the strategic objectives and sub-outcomes that South Cape TVET College 
committed to.

South Cape TVET College has implemented as regards the targets in two sub-outcomes of 
the MTSF, namely:

Sub-Outcome 2: Increased access and success in programmes leading to intermediate 
and high level Learning; and

Sub-Outcome 4: Increased access to occupationally directed programmes in needed 
areas and expansion of the availability of intermediate level skills with a special focus on 
artisan skills.

Moreover the AR highlights specic objectives that the College focused on during 2016. 
These objectives were:

1. To provide quality Technical and Vocational Education and Training services and

 increase academic achievement and success of students.

2. To have adequate infrastructure and systems in place to increase access and provide

 effective services to students.

3. To develop partnerships and maintain good stakeholder relations to increase the

 number of students who are adequately prepared to enter the labour market or further

 and higher Learning  opportunities.

4. To ensure continuous business excellence in terms of good corporate governance and

 effectual management of all College resources as well as information and data

 reporting.

5. To monitor and evaluate all College processes in terms of the TVET College Monitoring

 and Evaluation Framework and report quarterly on College performance in this regard.

As regards sub-outcome 2, it is heartening to report that Five Hundred and Forty (540) 
subject distinctions were achieved during the nal examinations.  Thirty NCV students 
obtained an “A” aggregate in comparison, with twenty in 2015. 



In the Occupational Delivery Branch, 115 Artisans commenced their training over a 3 year 
period as part of a successful partnership with Petro SA and the South African Oil and Gas 
Association, providing work based experience and practical training in a rural setting 
needing infrastructure spend and qualied staff for quality Occupational delivery.

The College Council, Academic Board, Audit and Risk Committee, Finance Committee, 
Human Capital Committee, Innovation and Development Committee, and the Planning 
and Resources Committees attended to all Governance matters during the various 
quarterly meetings. 

My gratitude goes to the College Management, Council, Staff and students of South 
Cape College for the work done during 2016 and achievements. 

The SRC is thanked for their continuous support to Council and Management and for 
improved communication with stakeholders. The leadership displayed encouraged good 
relationships with the students.  All students are encouraged to focus on their studies to 
ensure success in their respective careers and society at large. 

       

Ms N LICHABA

CHAIRPERSON OF COLLEGE COUNCIL
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Educati�
is not the learning
of facts, but the

�aining of the
mind to think!

-Albert Einstein



 
2. OVERVIEW BY THE PRINCIPAL
         MRS E S C M POTGIETER

South Cape TVET College 2016 Annual Report

The Annual Report of 2016 reects the activities, successes, challenges, 
achievements, growth and development of the College during 2016. The 
tables in the report provide comparative gures for the period 2007 – 
2016. 

South Cape TVET College is a complex institution delivering a diversity of 
programs to the students, communities, businesses and industries in the 

Eden and Karoo Districts of the Southern Cape. 

The vision to be a world class institution for Technical and Vocational Education and 
Training supported by the mission commits the College to facilitate quality and relevant 
teaching and learning in a supportive environment is reected in the Academic and in the 
Innovation and Development Reports. 

This Annual Report reects the achievements of the College's staff and students. The 
Management Team wishes to express our sincere appreciation to all our staff and students 
for their continuous commitment and diligence. 

The College Council, Academic Board, Student Representative Council Committee 
members, Management, Staff and Students' continuous commitment toward the 
successes achieved during 2016 is recognised. 

During 2016 the College continued with its strategy to decrease National Certicate 
Vocational (NCV) numbers and to increase post Grade 12 opportunities for the large 
cohort of students who wish to continue with their studies by increasing the Report 191 (N4 – 
N6) enrolments. The College also experienced growth in the Engineering Report 191 (N1 – 
N3) programs and in Artisan Training. 

The balance between funded (NCV and Report 191 programs) and Occupational 
Programs (Learnerships, Artisan Training, etc.) was maintained with a small increase in 
Occupational programs. This is also reected in the 2016 nancial performance of the 
College. The College received an unqualied audit in 2015 and 2016 – the second audit by 
the Auditor General's (AG) ofce and this conrms our commitment to excellent nancial 
management and a health disciplined nancial growth trajectory. 

The Audited Financial Statements for 2016 are included in the Annual Report and are also 
available on the College Website. 

MRS E S C M POTGIETER

PRINCIPAL
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3.  STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND 
    CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY

South Cape TVET College 2016 Annual Report

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I conrm the following:

1. All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent.

2. The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines issued by the

  Department of Higher Education and Training.

3. The annual nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant

 standards, frameworks and guidelines issued by National Treasury.

4. The Principal is responsible for the preparation of the annual for the judgements

 made in this document.

5. The Principal is responsible for establishing and implementing  a system of internal control

 that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and

 reliability of the performance information, the human resources information and the

 annual nancial statements.

6. The Auditor-General and/or external auditors express an independent opinion on the

 annual nancial statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reects the operations, the performance information, 
the human resources information and the nancial affairs of South Cape TVET College for 
the nancial year ended 31 December 2016.

      

MRS E S C M POTGIETER

PRINCIPAL 
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Educati�
is the most

p�erful weap� 
which you can

use to change the world.
-Nelson Mandela



 
4. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

4.1 Vision, mission and value statements
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South Cape TVET 

College strives to 

be a world class 

ins�tu�on for 

Technical and 

Voca�onal 

Educa�on and  

Training.  

 

VISION 

Where we 

want to be 
 

 

 

 

We are commi�ed 

to facilitate quality 

and relevant 

Teaching and 

Learning in a 

suppor�ve 

environment. 

 

MISSION 

Why we 

exist 

 

 

 

 

Exceeding the 
expecta�ons of our 
customers;  

Offering quality 
Educa�on and 
Training;  

Con�nuous 
improvement of our 
processes and 
training services 
through the se�ng 
of objec�ves which 
must be achieved;  

Offering demand 
driven courses;  

Pu�ng people first;  

Providing a 
suppor�ve 
environment for 
Educa�on and 
Training;  

Maintain high moral 
values and to 
embrace change  
 
Honesty, integrity, 

respect and 

transparency. 

  

VALUES 

How we 

behave 
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TVET COLLEGE STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 

Strategic 

Objec�ve 1 

To provide quality technical and voca�onal educa�on and training services and 

increase academic achievement and success of students. 

Objec�ve 

Statement 

To improve quality of technical and voca�o nal educa�on and training provision 

through the development of Teaching and Learning support plans, inclusive of 

appropriate student support.  

Baseline 

NC(V) L4 59% N3 43% N6 55% 

1 Teaching and Learning plan  

1 student support plan 

Jus�fica�on 

To ensure that lecturers and students receive the support necessary for lecturers to 

func�on op�mally and students to perform op�mally in technical and voca�onal 

programmes. 

To ensure improvement in student success in programmes offered at the college as 

well as student progression (measured in terms of pass rates).  

Links Linked to NDP, MTSF and White Paper on PSET 

 

 

 

 

Strategic 

Objec�ve 2 

To have adequate infrastructure and systems in place to increase access and provide 

effec�ve services to students.  

Objec�ve 

Statement 

To ensure ins�tu�onal capacity and efficiency in terms of the provision of access 

and support services to students. 

Baseline 

5 773 headcount student enrolment 2014 

6 campuses and 1 central office 

95% u�lisa�on of college infrastructure and facili�es 

Jus�fica�on 
To increase the number of skilled youth by expanding access to educa�on and 

training opportuni�es while ensuring provision of effec�ve services to students.  

Links Linked to NDP, MTSF and White Paper on PSET 

  



TVET COLLEGE STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 

Strategic 

Objec�ve 3 

To develop partnerships and maintain good stakeholder rela�ons to increase the 

number of students who are adequately prepared to enter the labour market or 

further and higher Learning  opportuni�es.  

Objec�ve 

Statement 

To increase the number of students who are able to access formal or self -

employment and/or further and higher educa�on and training opportuni�es. 

To provide work placement opportuni�es for lecturing staff in order to improve 

quality of teaching and Learning. 

Baseline 

38 Partnerships (inclusive of memoranda of agreement or understanding and/or 

contracts) established in 2014 

903 students and no lecturing staff placed for WBE and WIL 

Jus�fica�on 
To ensure students are adequately p repared and supported to access formal or self-

employment and/or further and higher Learning opportuni�es

Links Linked to NDP, MTSF and White Paper on PSET

 

Strategic 

Objec�ve 4 

To ensure con�nuous business excellence in terms of good corporate gov ernance and 

effec�ve management of all college resources as well as informa�on and data 

repor�ng. 

Objec�ve 

Statement 

To govern and steer the college to func�on op�mally and take appropriate ac�on 

where deficiencies are detected. 

Baseline 100% compliance to governance standards

Jus�fica�on 

To ensure the college is efficiently governed and managed within the applicable 

acts, policy and regulatory frameworks and standards relevant thereto so that it 

func�ons op�mally.

Links Linked to NDP, MTSF and White Paper on PSET 

 

Strategic 

Objec�ve 5 

To monitor and evaluate all college processes in terms of the TVET College Monitoring 

and Evalua�on Framework and report quarterly on college performance in this 

regard. 

Objec�ve 

Statement 

To monitor and report on college systemic efficiency so that appropriate ac�on is 

taken where deficiencies are detected. 

Baseline 4 quarterly M&E reports submi�ed in 2014

Jus�fica�on 
To ensure monitoring and evalua�on of college processes and plans are conducted 

Table 1; Part A

and regularly reported on.

Links Linked to NDP, MTSF and White Paper on PSET

 

  

 
4.2 STRATEGIC OVERVIEW
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5. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER 
    MANDATES
5.1  Legislative Framework
In terms of Sections 25(3) and 25(4) of the Continuing Education and Training (CET) 
Colleges Act, No 16 of 2006 (as amended), public technical and vocational education 
and training (TVET) Colleges are required to produce annual nancial reports and to 
comply with any reasonable additional reporting requirement established by the Minister.  
Moreover, Section 44 of the Act requires Colleges to annually report to the Minister in 
respect of its performance and its use of available resources.  

Further sets of legislation that impact on the TVET Colleges sector and its strategic and 
national imperatives are listed below:

 • National Qualications Framework (NQF) Act (No. 67 of 2008);

 • Higher Education (HE) Act (No. 101 of 1997);

 • Skills Development Act (No. 97 of 1998);

 • Skills Development Levies Act (No. 9 of 1999); and

 • General and Further Education and Training Quality Assurance Act (No. 58 of 2001).

In addition, the White Paper for Post-School Education and Training mandates delivery 
and strategic priorities in the TVET Colleges sector.  Other policy mandates include:

 • National Trade Testing Regulations;

 • SETA Grant Regulations;

 • National Skills Development Strategy;

 • Public TVET College Attendance and Punctuality Policy; and 

 • Policy on the Conduct of National Examinations and Assessment.

 • Policy on the Conduct of National Examinations and Assessment.

5.2 Annual Cycle of Reporting
The nal annual reports of the TVET Colleges must be submitted to the Department on 30

September 2017.  These reports, referred to in Sections 25 and 44 of the CET Colleges Act,

must include:

 • a report on the overall management and governance of the College;

 • a report on its overall performance and use of available resources; 

 • duly audited annual nancial statements; and 

 • any additional information required by the Minister in terms of the Act.



5.3    Audits and verification timeframes
The table below reects the periods during which audits will be conducted annually for 
enrolment dataset of the previous academic year as per “Audit and Verication of 
TVET College Enrolment Policy”.

 External audit by AG   April to May annually
 
 Internal audit by college-appointed auditors January to May annually
 
 Departmental Verifica�on February to March annually
 
 Annual report submission with unaudited  31 March of year of audit
 headcount (electronic copy)
 
 Annual financial statements (unaudited)  31 March of year of audit
 submission
 
 Annual financial statements (audited)  31 May of year of audit
 submission

 Annual report submission with audited  30 June of year of audit
 headcount

South Cape TVET College 2016 Annual Report
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6. HIGH-LEVEL ORGANISATIONAL
    STRUCTURE
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Department of Higher Educa�on and TrainingDepartment of Higher Educa�on and Training

College CouncilCollege Council

PrincipalPrincipal

Depu�y Principal:

Academic

Deputy Principal:

Academic

Beaufort West Camus 
Manager

(Vacant: Persal)

Beaufort West Camus 
Manager

(Vacant: Persal)

Lecturing Staff: x 10

Persal: x 3 

College: x 7

Vacant Persal: x 2 

Lecturing Staff: x 10

Persal: x 3 

College: x 7

Vacant Persal: x 2 

Support Staff: 8 

Persal: x 5

College: x 3

College Vacant: x 1

Support Staff: 8 

Persal: x 5

College: x 3

College Vacant: x 1

Bitou Campus Manager: 

(Vacant: Persal)

Bitou Campus Manager: 

(Vacant: Persal)

Lecturing Staff: x 11

Persal: x 6

College: x 5

Vacant Persal: x 2

Lecturing Staff: x 11

Persal: x 6

College: x 5

Vacant Persal: x 2

Support Staff: x 8

Persal x 4

College: x 4

Vacant College: x 1

Support Staff: x 8

Persal x 4

College: x 4

Vacant College: x 1

George Campus Manager:

(Persal)

George Campus Manager:

(Persal)

Lecturing Staff: x 48

Persal: x 28

College: x 19 

Vacant Persal: x 3

Lecturing Staff: x 48

Persal: x 28

College: x 19 

Vacant Persal: x 3

Support Staff: x 20

Persal: x 13

College: x 7

Vacant College: x 2

Support Staff: x 20

Persal: x 13

College: x 7

Vacant College: x 2

Hessequa Campus 
Manager: 

(College)

Hessequa Campus 
Manager: 

(College)

Lecturing Staff: x 3

College: x 3

Lecturing Staff: x 3

College: x 3

Support Staff: x 3 

College: x 2

Persal: x 1

Support Staff: x 3 

College: x 2

Persal: x 1

Support Staff

Persal: x 4

Vacant College: x 3

Support Staff

Persal: x 4

Vacant College: x 3



Mossel Bay Campus 
Manager:

(Vacant: Persal)

Mossel Bay Campus 
Manager:

(Vacant: Persal)

Lecturing Staff: x 33

Persal: x 33

College: x 11

Vacant Persal: x 3

Lecturing Staff: x 33

Persal: x 33

College: x 11

Vacant Persal: x 3

Support Staff: x 19

Persal: x 11

College: x 8

Vacant Persal: x 1

Support Staff: x 19

Persal: x 11

College: x 8

Vacant Persal: x 1

Oudtshoorn Campus 
Manager: 

(Vacant: Persal)

Oudtshoorn Campus 
Manager: 

(Vacant: Persal)

Lecturing Staff: x 22

Persal :x 21

College: x 1 

Vacant Persal: x 4

Lecturing Staff: x 22

Persal :x 21

College: x 1 

Vacant Persal: x 4

Support Staff: x 37

Persal: x 13

Collee: 24

Support Staff: x 37

Persal: x 13

College: 24

Deputy Principal: 

Corporate Services 

Deputy Principal: 

Corporate Services 

Support Staff: x 15

Persal: x 7

College: x8

Vacant Persal: x 3

Vacant College: x 1

Support Staff: x 15

Persal: x 7

College: x 8

Vacant Persal: x 3

Vacant College: x 1

Deputy Principal: 

Finance

(VacantO

Deputy Principal: 

Finance

(Vacant)

Support Staff: x 13

Persal: x 11

Vacant Persal x 4

Vacant College: x 2

Support Staff: x 13

Persal: x 11

Vacant Persal x 4

Vacant College: x 2

Deputy Principal: 

Innova�on and 
Development

Deputy Principal: 

Innova�on and 
Development

Support Staff: x 12

Persal: x 1

College: x 11

Vacant College: x3

Support Staff: x 12

Persal: x 1

College: x 11

Vacant College: x 3

Facilitators: x 48Facilitators: x 48

South Cape TVET College 2016 Annual Report
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PERFORMANCE 
INFORMATION



 
1.  COLLEGE PERFORMANCE AND 
    ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT
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South Cape TVET College registered a total of 4741 students during the 2016 academic 
year.  Totals are outlined in the tables below:
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BEAUFORT 
WEST 

106 135 38    199 478 

BITOU 127 74 49    208 458 

GEORGE 118 413 265    590 1386 

HESSEQUA 65 43 57 22    187 

MOSSEL BAY 119 65 56 175 129 137 423 1104 

OUDTSHOO
RN 

218 307 194    409 1128 

GRAND 
TOTAL 

753 1037 659 197 129 137 1829 4741 
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498
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337

BEAUFORT WEST 
CAMPUS

BITOU CAMPUS GEORGE CAMPUS HESSEQUA CAMPUS MOSSEL BAY CAMPUS OUDTSHOORN CAMPUS

STUDENT PROFILE:  GENDER

FEMALE MALE
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The Academic performance of the College is also improving annually. The expansion of 
the Academic Support Services and the dedication of the academic support staff is 
evident in the continued improved academic performance of our students.

The continuous improvement of our academic performance is reected in the improved 
certication rate, subject pass rate and retention rate in various programmes. A total of 
414 awards were issued at the Award Ceremony in May 2017. These achievement 
included 60 A-Aggregate students, 875 distinctions (subject passes above 80%), and 89.9% 
subject pass rate for NCV Level 2 – 4, the N1 – N3 subject pass rate of 70.6%, the N4 – N6 
subject pass rate of 81.8% and a certication rate of 64.7% in N4 – N6. 

Looking ahead, the College will continue with its academic improvement plan, a steady 
growth in post – Grade 12 programs, expanding to Level 5 qualications in partnership with 
Higher Education Institutions and growth in non-funded programs. The continuous 
improvement of all College facilities will remain a priority. 

Expansion and improvement of facilities during 2016 included the erection of a new class 
room building block in Mossel Bay Campus which will expand the facilities. All aged 
computers were replaced and the College is in the process of expanding its Computer 
Laboratory facilities. The College is also aggressively managing the maintenance of the 
facilities on all the Campuses. 

The College maintained its good relationship and accreditation with various Sector 
Education and Training Authorities (SETAs), the Department of Economic Development 
and Tourism (DEDAT), Department of Rural Development and Land Reform (DRDLR), the 
Department of Public Works, the Department of Social Services, The South African 
Government and Western Cape Education Department (WCED). 

 

South Cape TVET College 2016 Annual Report
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2. PERFORMANCE REPORTING
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2.1     Significant Achievements during the 2016 Academic Year
2.1.1  Academic Branch (Report 191 & NCV Programmes Only)
The strategic objective of Teaching and Learning is to implement relevant, quality and 
accredited programmes through different modes of delivery, which addresses the needs 
of all stakeholders.  To achieve this objective the following key functions were formulated:  

 

 •  Continuous monitoring of DHET Teaching and Learning Plan 2016 to ensure

  compliance;

 •  The offering of relevant student and academic support which could enable

  students with special needs to overcome barriers, meet Learning challenges and

  enhance student certication, retention and progression rates.

 •  The Academic Branch undertakes to set up and maintain the Management

  Information System (MIS) of the College.  The MIS key performance areas include:

  monitoring and evaluation of administrative processes, compliance to

  Departmental examination processes and policies, implementation of internal audit

  measures to ensure compliance and enhance system knowledge of Campus

  administration staff.

 • The annual verication has been conducted in September  2017 for the 2016 

  enrolments.    The outcome of the verication is not as yet available.

2.1.2  General and Student Performance Milestones Reached In 2016
 • An internal academic audit took place during June which inuence and led to the

  development and implementation of various improvement strategies such as

  Teaching and Learning strategy, student class attendance and retention strategy,

  revised model for capturing and verifying of student assessment marks and student

  support implementation plans;

 • Continuous monitoring and improvement strategies took place regarding quality

  assurance, academic standards, assessment and moderation processes;

 • Standardised enrolment and examination processes maintained and improved

  upon. MIS departmental standards were accomplished and led to the

  achievement of 100% compliance during the 2016 examination cycles;

 • Good to excellent ratings received from UMALUSI examination audits, as well as

  DHET audits such as enrolment audits, Teaching and Learning plan and student

  support audits during 2016. 



South Cape TVET College 2016 Annual Report

21

The following signicant examination results improvement took place during 2016 in 
comparison with 2015 for the National Certicate Vocational (NCV) programmes: 

 • A total of 540 NCV subject distinctions were achieved during the November 2016

  UMALUSI examination;

 • A total of 30 NCV students obtained an A-aggregate in 2016 in comparison to 20

  students in 2015;

 • The progression rate of NCV level 2 increased with a signicant percentage of

  27,77% from 55.50% in 2015 to 83.27% in 2016;

 • The subject pass rate of NCV level 2 increased by a percentage  of 11.42% from

  78.06% in 2015 to 89.48% in 2016;

 • The progression rate of NCV level 3 increased by a total of 8.6% from 59.44% in 2015

  to 68.04% 2016;

 • The subject pass rate of NCV level 3 increased by a total of 4.84% from 85.05% in 2015

  to 89.89% in 2016;

 • The subject pass rate of NCV level 4 increased by a total of 3.11% from 87.47% in 2015

  to 90.58% in 2016;

 • The student retention rate of NCV level 4 increased by a total of 2.92% from 88.56% in

   2015 to 91.48% in 2016.

The following signicant examination results improvement took place during 2016 in 
comparison with 2015 for Report 191 N1-N3 (Natural Sciences/Engineering Studies):

 • Report 191 (N1-N3) Engineering studies achieved a total of 92 subject distinctions

  which indicates a 51.52% increment  in comparison with the achievement  during

  2015;

 • The progression rate of trimester 1 Report 191 (N1) increased by a signicant

  percentage of 30.51% from 54.40% in 2015 to 84.91% in 2016;

 • The progression rate of trimester 2 Report 191 (N1 & N2) increased by a signicant

  percentage of 39.56% from 37.04% in 2015 to 76.60% in 2016;

 • The subject pass rate of trimester 2 (N1 & N2) increased by a total of 15.29% from

  60.51% in 2015 to 75.80% in 2016.

The following signicant examination results improvement took place during 2016 in 
comparison with 2015 for Report 191 N4-N6 (Business and General Studies):

 • A total of 243 Report 191 (N4-N6) subject distinctions were achieved during the June

  and November 2016 UMALUSI examination in comparison with 152 during 2015;

 • A total of 20 students obtained an A-aggregate during 2016 in comparison to 14

  students in 2015;

 • The progression rate of semester 1 Report 191 (N4) increased by a percentage of

  13.9% from 66.47% in 2015 to 80.37% in 2016;

 • The progression rate of semester 2 Report 191 (N4) increased by a percentage of

  15.56% from 43.60% in 2015 to 59.16% in 2016.
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2.1.3   Goals Set For 2017
 • Improved lecturer support through the establishment and implementation of the

  Lecturer and Curriculum Delivery Support strategy and unit;

 • Research and establish a partnership memorandum of understanding with at least

  one Higher Education Institution (HEI) to offer one higher education qualication in

  2018;

 • Increased student performance targets between 5-10%;

 • Continuous development of improvement strategies for Teaching and Learning

  that could enhance student performance rates;

 • Increased student support services and student placements in industry for

  internships, and workplace experience.

2.1.4  Conclusion
     Gratitude and appreciation accompanies this report to all staff members who have

  added enormous value and superb quality services during the 2016 academic  

  year.

the best way
to predict your

is to create it
future

-Abraham Lincoln
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2.2 Annual Performance Achievements

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
SC COLLEGE 2016 

PLANNED TARGET 

SC COLLEGE 2016 

ACHIEVEMENT 

SO1  

To provide quality 

technical and voca�onal 

educa�on and training 

services and increase 

academic achievement 

and success of students 

Appropriate Teaching and Learning 

support plan developed and implemented 

(n) 

N/A In place  

Appropriate student support plan 

developed and implemented (n) 
N/A In place 

Improved cer�fica�on rates in: 

NC(V) L4  

N3 &  

N6 (%) 

 

 

67% 

52% 

62% 

 

 

52% 

26% 

65% 

Throughput rate (%) 60% 30% 

Funded NC(V) L4 students obtaining 

qualifica�on within s�pulated �me (%) 
58% 56% 

TVET students enrolled in founda�on or 

bridging programmes (n) 
100 100 

Students comple�ng ar�san-related 

programmes (n) 
74 74 

Established centre/s of specialisa�on 

(COS) (n) 
0 0 

SO2 

To have adequate 

infrastructure and 

systems in place to 

increase access and 

provide effec�ve 

services to students 

Headcount enrolment (n) 5406 4741 

Students accommodated in College 

accommoda�on (n) 
250 250 

Qualifying students obtaining financial 

assistance (n) 
2422 2398 
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
SC COLLEGE 2016 

PLANNED TARGET 

SC COLLEGE 2016 

ACHIEVEMENT 

SO3 

To develop partnerships 

and maintain good 

stakeholder rela�ons to 

increase the number of 

students who are 

adequately prepared to 

enter the labour market 

or further and higher 

Learning  opportuni�es 

Beneficial and func�onal College 

partnerships (n) 
52 49 

South Cape College lecturers placed in 

workplaces for specified periods (n) 
42 1 

South Cape College students placed in 

workplaces/industry for specified periods 

for work exposure, experien�al Learning  

and/or cer�fica�on purposes (n) 

1670 1670 

SO4 

To ensure con�nuous 

business excellence in 

terms of good corporate 

governance and 

effectual management of 

all College resources as 

well as informa�on and 

data repor�ng1 

Compliance to governance standards (%) 100%  

Compliance to policies and regula�ons 

applicable to the TVET College sector (%) 
100%  

Obtaining unqualified audits or 

assessments (n) 
1 1 

Compliance with na�onal policy of 

College examina�on centres conduc�ng 

examina�ons and assessments (%) 

100% 100% 

SO5 

To monitor and evaluate 

all College processes in 

terms of the framework 

for TVET College 

performance and report 

quarterly in this regard 

Accurate M&E quarterly reports 

submi�ed (n) 
4 4 
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No Outcome Indicator 
2016/17 Planned 

Na�onal Target  

South Cape College 

2016 Planned 

Target 

South Cape 

College 2016 

Achievement 

1. 
Headcount enrolments (n) 

829 000 5406 4741 

2. 

Cer�fica�on rates in TVET 

qualifica�ons (%) 

NC(V) L4: 40% 

N3: 65% 

N6: 45% 

67% 

52% 

62% 

52% 

26% 

65% 

3. 

Compliance with na�onal policy of 

College examina�on centre/s 

conduc�ng na�onal examina�ons 

and assessments (%) 

100% 100% 100% 

4. 
Throughput rate (%) 

 60% 30% 

5. 
Students accommodated in public 

TVET College accommoda�on (n) 250 250 250 

6. 
Qualifying TVET students obtaining 

financial assistance (n) 200 000 3500 2398 

7. 

Funded NC(V) L4 students obtaining 

qualifica�on within s�pulated �me 

(%) 

15% 58% 56% 

8. 
Compliance to governance standards 

(%) 
100% 100%  

9. 
TVET lecturers placed in workplaces 

for specified periods (n)  42 1 

10.

TVET students placed in 

workplaces/industry for specified 

periods for work exposure, 

experien�al Learning  and/or 

cer�fica�on purposes (n) 

 

 

 

1670 

 

 

1670 

11.

Students comple�ng ar�san-related 

programmes (n) 
 115 74 

 

  

 
2.3  College Achievement in terms of Expected Outcomes
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2.4 Strategy to deal with underperformance
Narrative section on dealing with underperformance in terms of the strategic objectives 
and annual performance targets.  This summary should comprise of a summary from 
the inputs in the tables below: 

 2.4.1 Audit Intervention Strategies To Deal With Underperformance:
     Due to the shortage of staff in the Internal Audit Department audits are

   taking a lot of time and nal reporting was slow and hence delayed.

   During 2016 most of the Internal Auditor's time was spent on Risk  

   Management issues, developing a new Fraud Prevention Policy and an Anti-

   corruption and Whistle Blowing Policy and assisting the College to get a

   Whistle Blowing hotline in order for staff, students, suppliers and the public to

   report fraud and corruption anonymously and arranged awareness training

   for all College staff.

   Vacant positions in the Branch will be lled to ensure better service delivery

   during 2017.

 2.4.2 Human Capital Intervention Strategies to Deal with Underperformance:

  2.4.2.1 S  tudents accommodated in public TVET College a   ccommodation
    The College accommodated 248 students in the three Campuses i.e.

    Hessequa, Oudtshoorn and George Campuses. The College

    continues to improve its capacity in terms of students’

    accommodation and the living conditions in the student residences. It

    is expected that fty four (54) new beds will be added in the College

    students' accommodation facilities once the Mossel Bay students’

    residence project is complete. 

  2.4.2.2 TVET lecturers placed in workplaces for specified periods 
    Nine lecturers were placed in relevant companies as a result of

    lecturer workplace exposure. Some of the challenges which led to

    underperformance include; change of management for companies

    that already have MoUs with the College in this regard, unwillingness

    of other companies approached to accommodate lecturers,

    unwillingness of staff to attend due to perceived inadequate nancial

    incentives and also shortage of staff dedicated to the placement

    process of lecturers. 
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2.5 Quality Assurance intervention strategies to deal with

  underperformance:
  · The College agged Policy Reviews in its Year Calendar of Important Dates

   to emphasise prioritisation and commitment to have updated and relevant

   policies.  Regular review meetings are scheduled and attended by top

   management and middle management co-chaired by the Principal and

   the Quality Manager;

  · The Risk Register for the Ofce of the Principal was updated by the two

   departments, Internal Audit and Risk Management and Quality Assurance. 

   Participation in the Risk Management Committee ensures that identied high

   risks are managed and minimised and corrective and preventive actions are

   taken and monitored for effectiveness;  

  · The Quality Department annually plans and conduct internal audits on

   critical areas and potential areas for non-compliances.  Internal quality

   audits are used as an instrument to monitor implementation of processes

   and procedures of the College and requirements of Quality Management

   System Standard, ISO 9001 which the College is certied with. Audits also

   assist with ensuring consistency throughout the College.  In the year under

   review internal quality audits were conducted on thirty (30) different

   departmental processes including four (4) Campuses; 

  · The Department developed research request procedure as per DHET

   guidelines to manage information ow and safeguard College intellectual

   property by administering the process.  2016 was the rst year of

   implementation and eight requests were administered;    

  · 2017 is marked as the year to assess the impact of newly designed QMS, its

   accessibility and usability as it is expected to receive feedback from the

   users. The feedback from the users will contribute towards improvement of

   the system and increase staff awareness.

2.6 Finance Interventions to Deal with Underperformance:
  · The underperformance with regards to nancial assistance is addressed

   through continuous communication and introduction of other bursary

   sources to students, such as W&R SETA, Services SETA, Municipalities and

   other private funders.

  · In terms of College residence, the College is in the Process of building a new

   hostel in Mossel Bay, and also to source funding for the erection of a hostel in

   Beaufort West. The College also hopes to avail reserve funds to expand and

   maintain College infrastructure.
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GOVERNANCE
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1.1 Names of Council Chairperson and members as well as their
 designated functions
 No new Council members were appointed during the 2016 academic year. 

 
1.  CONSTITUTION OF THE COLLEGE 
    COUNCIL AND GOVERNANCE 
    STRUCTURES
   

FIRST NAME
 

SURNAME
 

DESIGNATION + DONOR
 

Ms Nthabiseng
 

Lichaba
 

External Councilor; Council Chairperson; EXCO Chairperson; Member 
Finance Commi�ee

 

(Business woman)
 

 

Mr Shaheed 
 

Peters
 

External Councilor; Council Deputy Chairperson; Chairperson: Finance 
Commi�ee; Chairperson: Audit and Risk Commi�ee

 

(Business:  SPWM)
 

 

Mr Norman Mzukisi Cona 
External Councilor; Chairperson: I&D Commi�ee

 

(School Principal: Thembalethu High School)  
 

Mr Thamsanqa 

Sweetman 
Dazela 

External Councilor; Member of Academic Board  

(Bitou Municipality)  
 

Ms Nombuso Gumede 
External Councilor: Represen�ng donors; Member of I&D Commi�ee  

(Area Manager: Offsites & U�li�es PetroSA)  
 

Mr Monde Given Stratu 

External Councilor; Council Secretary; Chairperson: Planning and 
Resource Commi�ee  
(Bitou Municipality)  

 

Mrs Elsie Potgieter 

Internal Councilor; Principal; Chairperson Academic Board  
(South Cape TVET College)  

 

Mr Hendrik Johannes Cronje 

Internal Councilor -  Support Staff Representa�ve  
(SCC Ass Dir: New Business)  

 

Ms Carmen
 

Philips-
Moorcro�

 

Internal Councilor -
 
Academic Board Representa�ve

 
(Ac�ng Campus

 
Head at SCC Mossel Bay Campus) 

 
 

Mr Ndikhokele
 

Sokabo
 

Internal Councilor -
 
Lecturers Representa�ve 

 
(SCC Mossel Bay Campus)

 
 

Mr Zithobile 
 

Rawana
 

Internal Councilor -
 
SRC Execu�ve President

 (Student at SCC Bitou Campus)
 

 
Mr Jerome

 
Kefile

 

Internal Councilor -
 
SRC Execu�ve Deputy President

 (Student at SCC Beaufort West
 
Campus)
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2016 PURPOSE OF MEETINGS QUARTERLY  

MEETINGS  

COLLEGE COUNCIL • Provide strategic direc�on to the College to enable the ins�tu�on to 

fulfil its mandate of providing educa�on and training to its students;  

• Develop and adopt policies in a range of areas which will assist College  

management and staff to implement the strategic plan;  

• Monitor and report on the performance of the College, its 

management and staff in fulfilling the ins�tu�onal strategic plan.  

• Determine admission requirements in respect of TVET programmes;  

• Determine the number of students who may be admi�ed for a 

par�cular TVET programme and the manner of their selec�on;  

• Determine the minimum requirements of re-admission to study at the 

relevant College; and 

• Refuse readmission of a student who fails to sa�sfy the minimum 

requirements for readmission; 

• Council acts in five areas:  Development, Monitoring, Approval, 

Compliance and Financial Oversight. 

4  

EXECUTIVE 

COMMITTEE 

(EXCO) 

• Oversight role – Council’s effec�veness.  ad hoc  

ACADEMIC BOARD • Inform and update the Council about the nature, scope and quality of 

the College’s academic provision; 

• Establish internal academic monitoring and quality promo�on 

mechanism; 

• Ensure that the requirements of the accredita�ons to provide Learning  

against standards and qualifica�ons registered on the NQF are met; 

and 

• Perform other func�ons delegated to them by the council;  

• Makes recommenda�ons where a Council decision is required and 

report on student enrolments, exam results, student support issues 

and approval of new programmes; 

• SRC, a statutory body represen�ng students, reports via the Academic 

Board. 

4  
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1.2 Number of meetings held and for what reason:
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2016 PURPOSE OF MEETINGS 
QUARTERLY  

MEETINGS  

FINANCE 

COMMITTEE 

• Makes recommenda�ons where a Council decision is required;  

• Reports on performance against budget, the cash flow, outstanding 

debtors and Financial Performance. 

4  

AUDIT & RISK

COMMITTEE 

• The Commi�ee makes recommenda�ons where  a Council  decision is 

required; 

• Monitors external financial audi�ng of College  finances;  

• Monitor and evaluate top risks as iden�fied in the Risk Matrix, the 

Internal Audit Report and the Quality Assurance Report.  

4  

HUMAN CAPITAL 

COMMITTEE 

• Makes recommenda�ons where a Council decision is required;  

• Tabling the schedule of all new appointments and termina�ons, the 

staff development schedule, the equity report, condi�ons of services 

and labour rela�ons. 

4  

INNOVATION &

DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

• Informs Council about Occupa�onal delivery, accredita�on of 

programmes, funding opportuni�es, research and marke�ng.  

4  

PLANNING &

RESOURCE 

COMMITTEE 

• Focuses on infrastructure projects, ICT infrastructure and Occupa�onal 

Health and Safety Compliance. 

• Provide strategic direc�on and assist with planning.  

4  

1.3 Performance in terms of its statutory functions, explained in

 Section 10(1)-(3) of the CET Act 
 The College Council complied with the following requirements:

 1. College Statute (section 10(1)s;

 2. The Strategic Plan approved by the MEC (section 10(2)(i-iv));

 3. The Language Policy (section 10(2)(b)); 

 4. Accreditation requirements according to standards and qualications

  registered on the NQF (section 10(2)C));

 5. Student Support Services according to the DHET guidelines (section 10(3));

 6. Council membership (section 10(4));

 7. Council Chairperson, vice-chairperson and other ofce bearers are

  external members (section 10(5).

Table 2; Part C



2.1 Background
Situated in the Western Cape, the Eden and Karoo District Municipality, the catchment 
area is 80 822 km2.  In addition to the six Campuses, the Central Ofce is located in 
George. Campuses are situated in Beaufort West, Bitou (Plettenberg Bay), George, Mossel 
Bay, Hessequa (Riversdale) and in Oudtshoorn. Hostel accommodation is available in 
George, Mossel Bay and Oudtshoorn.  

The College has made a strategic shift towards Report 191 and Occupational 
Programmes to meet the training needs as required by its target market.  Most enquiries 
are from students who have completed their Grade 12 and wish to study further.  By 
offering a more mature qualied student, WIL and work placement of students become a 
key performance measure of the College's success in business and industry.  This, however 
is an unfunded mandate for the year 2016. The Occupational PQM targets increased for 
2017.

2.2 Corporate Services
The Corporate Services Branch of South Cape College has made signicant strides in the 
following areas: 

 · All DHET and College Council staff underwent a verication process in order to  

  certify them as employees working for and based at South Cape College;   

 · Various training interventions were rolled out covering over 300 employees.

  Training covered a varied staff prole and demographics;

 · The employment equity committee continues to provide oversight on the

  implementation of the College employment equity strategy. The strategy has

  been developed in 2016 and comprises of a ve year plan;

 · The College, in partnership with Microsoft South Africa is rolling out Ofce 365

  (for free access to the ofce package and access to ofine email accounts

  for both staff and students);

 · Procurement of student Wi-Fi for two student residences is underway and is

  expected to be complete by July 2017;

 · In Beaufort West, SCC has secured an Erf from the municipality which will be 

  used to build a student residence and other relevant amenities;

 · In Mossel Bay, a construction of seven (7) additional classrooms is underway

  and is expected to be completed by the 30 June 2017;

 · All College sites have been certied as Occupational Health and Safety

  compliant. 

 
2.  COLLEGE PERFORMANCE IN TERMS 
    OF STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
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2.3 Internal Audit 
 • Developed new Fraud Prevention Policy and an Anti-corruption and Whistle

  Blowing Policy;

 • Assisted the College to get a Whistle Blowing hotline and arranged awareness

  training for all College staff;

 • The College has a Risk Management Policy and Strategy that includes a Risk

  Management Implementation Plan.  These have been approved by the

  Audit and Risk Management Committee and the College Council;

 • A Risk Management Committee consisting of Senior Management, the

  Internal Auditor, the Chief Risk Ofcer and the Quality Manager was

  established in 2016. The Committee meets on a monthly basis to discuss the

  College's top risks and implement strategies to control it;

 • The Internal Auditor reports quarterly to the Audit and Risk Management

  Committee on all work conducted;

 • The College developed a Fraud Prevention Policy and an Anti-corruption and

  Whistle Blowing Policy during the year;  

 • The College outsourced the Whistle Blowing hotline where the public can

  report fraud  and corruption anonymously.  Awareness training was provided

  to all staff members of the College. Reported cases would be investigated

  and if needed further investigation will be outsourced.

2.4 Management Information Systems 
MIS departmental standards were accomplished and led to the achievement of 100% 
compliance during the 2016 examination cycles

 • A total of 30 NCV students obtained an A-aggregate in 2016 in comparison to

  20 students in 2015;

 • The progression rate of NCV level 2 increased by a signicant percentage of

  27,77% from 55.50% in 2015 to 83.27% in 2016;

 • The subject pass rate of NCV level 2 increased by a percentage  of 11.42%

  from 78.06% in 2015 to 89.48% in 2016;

 • The subject pass rate of NCV level 4 increased by a total of 3.11% from 87.47%

  in 2015 to 90.58% in 2016;

 • The student retention rate of NCV level 4 increased by a total of 2.92% from

  88.56% in 2015 to 91.48% in 2016.

 • Report 191 (N1-N3) Engineering studies achieved a total of 92 subject

  distinctions which indicate a 51.52% increment  in comparison with the

  achievement  during 2015;

 • The progression rate of trimester 1 Report 191 (N1) increased with a signicant

  percentage of 30.51% from 54.40% in 2015 to 84.91% in 2016;

 • The progression rate of trimester 2 Report 191 (N1 & N2) increased with a

  signicant percentage of 39.56% from 37.04% in 2015 to 76.60% in 2016.



2.5 Academic
 • Improved lecturer support through the establishment and implementation

  of the Lecturer and Curriculum Delivery Support strategy and unit;

 • Research and establish a partnership memorandum of understanding with

  at least one Higher Education Institution (HEI) to offer one higher education

  qualication in 2018.

2.6 Quality Assurance 
The College continues to enjoy third cycle of ISO 9001 Certication which conrms 
compliance with the Standard.  The College is audited by South African Bureau of 
Standards (SABS) annually and has since 2009 retained its certication status and 
continuous improvement.  The SABS 2017 audit will take place in August (29 – 31 August 
2017).

 • The Quality Management System (QMS) has been revamped to make it

  more aligned to the College Strategic Plan, more logical and more

  streamlined for easy access and ow with new features (such as search

  engine) to be implemented in 2017;

 • Management Reviews were successfully conducted per schedule whereby

  all quality procedures and manuals were reviewed and conrmed

  effectiveness of the management system.    
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3.1 Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit Committee Report has been subdivided into two categories: Quality 
Department Report and Audit Department report. 

3.1.1  Quality Department Report
The Quality Department has a responsibility to ensure that the College is in compliance 
with internal arrangements, International Organisation for Standardisation (ISO) 9001 
Standard requirements, Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) and relevant 
regulations in delivering quality Education and Training.  

In the year under review the Department shares the following achievements in terms of the 
strategic sub-outcome targets:

Monitoring, implementation and maintenance of the College's Quality Management 
System is internal quality audit of processes to ensure compliance, effectiveness and 
reporting (SO5):

  The College continues to enjoy third cycle of ISO 9001 Certication which•
  conrms compliance with the Standard. The College is audited by the South
  African Bureau of Standards (SABS) annually and has, since 2009 retained its
  certication status through continuous improvement.  The SABS 2017 audit will
  take place from 29 – 31 August 2017;
  Policy reviews were accelerated by revival of the Policy Review Committee•
  with the determination to address the backlog of reviews.  The Policy Review
  Committee's commitment is witnessed by the number of policies that were
  reviewed.  In the period of four months approximately fty-nine policies were
  reviewed and ten were approved by the College Council;
  The College agged Policy Reviews in its Annual Calendar of Important Dates•
  to emphasise prioritisation and commitment to have updated and relevant
  policies;
  The College Quality Management Policy Manual stipulates that Process•
  Owners must review their processes annually.  After the approval of reviewed
  and/or new policies the Process Owners must review the processes to ensure
  alignment and relevance to the policies;
  The Quality Management System (QMS) has been revamped to make it more•
  aligned to the College Strategic Plan, more logical and streamlined for easy
  access and ow with new features;
  Management Reviews were successfully conducted per schedule whereby•
  all quality procedures and manual were reviewed and conrming the
  effectiveness of the system; 

 
3.  REPORTS BY COMMITTEES OF 
    COUNCIL
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  The Department is developing a process and policy on how to effectively•

  manage Complaints, Compliments and Suggestions and including

  feedback;

  Quarterly reports were timeously compiled and submitted to the Audit and•

  Risk Management Committee and to the College Council;

  The Risk Register for the Ofce of the Principal was updated in collaboration•

  with the Internal Audit Department.  Participation in the Risk Management

  Committee ensures that identied high risks are managed and minimised.

  Moreover that corrective and preventive actions are taken and monitored

  for effectiveness;

  Internal quality audits are conducted. This continuously assists monitoring•

  compliance with policies and process as documented on the QMS.  Audits

  also assists with ensuring consistency throughout the College;

  The Quality Department annually plans and conducts internal audits on•

  critical areas and potential areas for non-compliances.  Internal quality

  audits are used as an instrument to monitor implementation of processes and

  procedures of the College and requirements of the Quality Management

  System Standard, ISO 9001;  

  The Department developed a research request procedure as per DHET•

  guidelines to manage information ow and safeguard College intellectual

  property by administering the process.  The year 2016 was the rst year of

  implementation and eight requests were administered;   

  The year 2017 is targeted as the year to assess the impact of the newly•

  designed QMS, its accessibility and usability after feedback from users. The

  feedback from the users will contribute towards improvement of the system

  and increase staff awareness.

 3.1.2  Internal Audit Department Report

  3.1.2.1 Scope of work
    The Institute of Internal Auditors denes internal auditing as, “an

    independent, objective assurance and consulting activity

     designed to add value and improve an organisation's

     operations.  It helps an organisation accomplish its   objectives by

     bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 

    improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and

    governance processes.”

    The Internal Audit function should therefore evaluate and

     contribute to the improvement of risk management, control and

     governance systems of the organisation.
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  3.1.2.2 Risk Management
    In terms of section 25 of the Continuing Education and Training

    Act (Act no.16 of 2006), as amended by the Continuing

    Education and Training Act (Act 3 of 2012), the Council of South

    Cape TVET College must “implement internal audit and risk

    management systems which are not inferior to the standards

    contained in the Public Finance Management Act”.

    Policies for Internal Audit, Risk Management and Fraud

    prevention have been developed, approved by Council and

    communicated to all staff.

    The College has policies and procedures in place to govern all of

    its functions and cases of possible irregularities are followed up

    immediately when discovered;  

 

     The College has a Risk Management Policy and Strategy•

     that includes a Risk Management Implementation Plan. 

     These have been approved by the Audit and Risk

     Management Committee and the College Council;

     A Risk Management Committee consisting of Senior•

     Management, the Internal Auditor, the Chief Risk Ofcer

     and the Quality Manager was established in 2016. The

     Committee meets on a monthly basis to discuss the

     College's top risks and implement strategies to control it;  

     The Internal Auditor reports quarterly to the Audit and Risk•

     Management Committee on all work conducted.

  3.1.2.3 Fraud and Corruption
     The College developed a Fraud Prevention Policy and an•

     Anti-corruption and Whistle Blowing Policy during the year;  

     The College outsourced the Whistle Blowing hotline where•

     the public can report fraud and corruption anonymously. 

     Awareness training was provided to all staff members of

     the College;

     Reported cases would be investigated and if needed•

     further investigation will be outsourced.



  3.1.2.4 Goals realised in 2016  
    The Internal Audit function's goals achieved in 2016 were:

     Attended and reported to the Audit and Risk Committee; •

     Drafted and implemented the approved Internal Audit•

     Plan;

     Facilitated annual risk assessment processes; •

     Attended and Chaired monthly Risk Management•

     Meetings monitoring the College's highest risks;

     Liaised with the external auditor;  •

     Implemented policies and procedures to enable•

     conformance to standards;

     Updated policies for the Internal Audit and Risk•

     Management function on the QMS;

     Developed new Fraud Prevention Policy and an Anti-•

     corruption and Whistle Blowing Policy;

     Assisted the College to establish a Whistle Blowing hotline•

     and arranged awareness training for all College staff;

     Attended the following committee meetings: Financial•

     Aid Committee, Finance Committee, Management

     Review Committee, Broad Management Committee,

     Audit Steering Committee and the ITS Service Manager

     meeting;

     Submitted the annual Internal Audit and Risk•

     Management Report;

     Developed the  strategic and operational plans for the•

     Branch;

     Followed up on outstanding preventive and corrective•

     action plans of internal audit ndings;

     Gathered information for the external audit form College•

     staff and respond to audit ndings;

     Did investigations as requested by the College Council;•

     Assisted the Acting Deputy Principal Finance with the•

     monitoring of the 2015 audit ndings.
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  3.1.2.5 Goals set for 2017
    The objectives of the Internal Audit Function are, amongst others,

    to provide Management with reasonable, assurance that:

     Risks are properly managed;•

     Assets are safeguarded;•

     Financial and operational information is reliable;•

     Operations are effective and efcient; and•

     Laws and regulations are complied with.•

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is in place and functions effectively as 
required by the Treasury Regulations and the PFMA.  The Audit and Risk Management 
Committee held ve meetings during the period under review and was assisted by the 
Internal Auditor providing secretarial services.
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3.2 Finance Committee
The report of the Finance Committee using the following categories;  Financial Highlights, 
Supply Chain Management; Governance; Information systems. 

3.2.1 Financial Highlights

          2016 2015 Change

          Rm Rm  %

Revenue

Direct subsidy        25,9 20,8 + 24,5%

NSFAS funding        17,1 17,9 -   4,5%

Tuition fees not funded by NSFAS         7,3   9,7 - 24.7%           

Occupational programmes      14,0 17,5 -  20,0%

Interest and other income         2,8   1,8 + 55.6%

Total Revenue excluding Persal 'Services-in-kind’   68,0 110,0  - 38,2%

Expenditure

Persal          49,5 37,7  + 31,2%

College payroll        31,3 44,1  - 29,0%

Total employee cost       80,8 81,8-  -  1,2%

Operating expenditure       34,4 49,3 -  30,2%

Total expenditure excl. bad debts and depreciation  115,2 131,1 -  12,1%

(Decit)/Surplus for year       (1,4) 17,8 -  108%

Cash at end of year       40,8 45,8 -  10,9%

Net assets / reserves       189,0 190,0 -  0,5%

Capital expenditure           8,2      7,5 + 9,3%

3.2.1.1 Revenue
  Revenue declined mainly as a result of the three year Skills program funded by•

  the National Skills Fund which came to an end in 2015; 

  Revenue from tuition fees not funded by NSFAS declined by 25% year-on-•

  year;

  The Programme Funding subsidy by DHET increased by 24,5%, from R20,8 m to•

  R25,9 m;

  Alternative sources of funding for the upgrading of infrastructure is being•

  looked into.  
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3.2.1.2 Expenditure 
  • Expenditure declined mainly as a result of less stipends being paid, in

   line with the NSF project skills program coming to an end;

   A total of R11,6 million in bad debt was approved by Council to be•

   written off. 

   Changes in the two payroll expenditures are the result of employees•

   having been registered on Persal. There are, however, still 58 College

   employees on the College payroll who could not 'migrate', for various

   reasons – refer 3.3.2 below.

   The College achieved a surplus of R0,2 m (2015: R17,6m) before a write-•

   down of the value of the Central Ofce building of R1,6 m.

3.2.2  Supply Chain Management
  • Three tenders were put out, two for the procurement of 190 desktop

   computers and another to procure the services of a contractor for

   upgrading and repairs of infrastructure at various sites. A fourth tender

   for the procurement of an insurance broker was referred back for re

   evaluation of the specications before releasing for tender again in the

   year 2017;

   The position of an Assistant-Director: Supply Chain Management is•

   being recruited.

3.2.3  Governance
  • The existing College Finance-related policies are in the process of

   being aligned to DHET developed policies;

   The Audit & Risk Committee, Finance Committee and Internal Auditor•

   were in place throughout the year. Continuous efforts are being

3.2.4  Information Systems
  • The ITS information system currently in place is under review to

    determine whether it suits the requirements of the College.
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3.3 Human Capital report
 The Branch Corporate Services is mandated to provide corporate support

 throughout the South Cape TVET College. The functions performed by this unit

 include Human Resources Management and Administration, Recruitment and

 Selection, Labour Relations Management, Human Resources Development, Staff

 Performance Management, Information Communications and Technology,

 College Fleet Management, Physical Facilities Maintenance, Occupational Health

 and Safety, provision of Physical Infrastructure, provision of Physical Security. To

 accomplish its mission, Corporate Services works collaboratively with the College

 community to provide reliable support services.

 

 3.3.1  Human Resource Management 
   During the 2016/17 nancial year the College had in its staff

   establishment the below depicted complement. Staff turnover mainly

   occurred due to natural attrition, resignations and medical

   retirements/boarding. Moreover the College employed South Cape

   College graduates as interns, mainly to provide them with workplace

   experience.  

 3.3.2  Staff Complement
   Nineteen (19) new staff members were appointed to the College in the

   nancial year under review. These included fteen (15) academic staff

   and four (4) support staff. Five of these appointees are DHET

   permanent employees and the balance are College Council contract

   employees.   

   All DHET and College Council staff underwent a verication process in

   order to certify them as employees working for and based at South

   Cape College.   
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   STAFF ESTABLISHMENT BY NUMBERS

   Support staff (including management)     192

   Academic staff        131

   Interns         17

   TOTAL STAFF        323

      

   STAFF ESTABLISHMENT BY FUNDING

   DHET staff        160

   College Council        163

   TOTAL STAFF        323

 3.3.3  Human Resources Development
   The College has established a Human Capital Development

   Committee.  This committee is mandated to guide the provision of

   staff development in the College and comprised of diverse

   membership of support and academic staff, derived from all

   Campuses of the College.   Various training interventions were rolled

   out covering over 300 employees.  Training covered a varied staff

   prole and demographics. 

   Nine (9) lecturers beneted from the lecturer workplace exposure

   during 2016 academic year. The programme provides lecturers with

   an opportunity to relate theory to practice thus obtaining rst-hand

   experience in the industry in which they operate.

   The College continues to strengthen its performance management

   systems to ensure that each employee reaches his/her maximum

   potential. There has been a remarkable improvement in terms of

   compliance though there is still a certain level of non-compliance.

   The College will deploy other strategies to curb this behaviour and

   encourage staff to understand and own the process including 

   brieng sessions and disciplinary actions. For 2017 the College will

   introduce a government wide staff performance  management and

   development system for all support staff. The IQMS system will endure

   for academic staff until another system is introduced.  

   A policy to regulate staff bursary scheme has been completed and

   the scheme will be rolled out during 2017. The lack of policy led to a

   suspension of the College bursary scheme.  
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 3.3.4  Employment equity profile 
   The employment equity committee continues to provide oversight

   on the implementation of the College employment equity strategy.

   The strategy has been developed in 2016 and is a ve year plan.  

   Year  Coloured  African  White  Indian  Total Disability

   2016 173  75  74  1  0.6%

        

 3.3.5  Information and Communications Technology (ICT)
   The unit has devoted good effort in trying to improve the regulation

   of its services. Numerous policies have been put in place including

   the (ToR) for the establishment of ICT Governance Committee, ICT

   security policy, ICT access control etc. 

   The College, in partnership with Microsoft South Africa is rolling out

   ofce 365 (for free access to the ofce package and access to

   ofine email accounts for both staff and students). 

   The College has agreed to host Cloud Connect Network repeater in

   return for 30 Mb/s internet connection which is being deployed to

   the existing  resources. This addition will guarantee the College an

   efcient and fast internet connection.  

   Procurement of student Wi-Fi for two student residences is underway

   and is expected to be completed by July 2017.  

   The table below depicts computers to be procured in 2016.

    Campus   Open Learning Centre  Computer Lab 

    George      105

    Mossel Bay         90

    Oudtshoorn         35

    Bitou         35

    Beaufort West       35

    Hessequa    20   35
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3.3.6  Physical Resources 
   In Beaufort West, SCC has secured an Erf from the municipality which

   will be used to build student residences and other relevant amenities.  

 

   In Mossel Bay, a construction of seven (7) additional classrooms is

   underway and is expected to be completed by the 30 June 2017. 

   In George, the College and George Municipality are nalizing

   negotiations for a  transfer of land to the College for the purposes of

   expansion in the area.    

   Provision of security services remained very unstable for the larger

   part of 2016 due to poor performance of the contracted service

   provider in this area. The processes of improving this area are

   underway.  

   All College sites have been certied as Occupational Health and

   Safety compliant. 

   The College eet remains stable though it is an ageing and a highly

   utilized eet. 

 3.4 Planning and Resources Committee 
  The Planning and Resources Committee provides oversight on the

  development, implementation and monitoring of the College strategic

  plan. Moreover the committee oversees all College processes linked to the

  provision of resources from ICT, infrastructure, security and eet services.

  The Planning and Resources Committee comprises of 50% internal

  members and 50% external members. Currently this committee is only

  made up of external Council members. In the year 2016 the committee

  could only hold one (1) meeting due to non-availability of committee

  members. In order to address this challenge, the College Council deployed

  another member to Chair the committee.         

 3.5 Human Capital Committee
  The College statute provides for the establishment of the Human Capital

  Committee to oversee governance matters pertaining to the provision of

  human resource services to College staff. The committee comprises of a

  split of external and internal Councillors. The committee held four (4)

  mandatory pre-scheduled and one (1) special meeting in the year 2016.

  Generally all meetings of the Human Capital Committee have been

  attended by members to attain a quorum.  However not all meetings

  enjoyed 100% attendance. The College has adopted various ways to avert

  non-attendance or poor attendance of meetings including holding

  meetings after hours to accommodate Council members.
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 3.6 Innovation and Development Committee 
  3.6.1 Introduction: Roles, functions and responsibilities
    The Innovation and Development (I&D) Branch consists of three

    main Departments

     Marketing and Communication; •

     New Business;•

     Programmes' Implementation.•

  The main strategic objectives and key performance areas of the Branch:

   Related to the College's Strategic Goal One: (Increase the number•

   of skilled youth by expanding access to education and training of

   youth): The introduction of new business and the subsequent

   implementation of quality, accredited and relevant occupationally

   directed Education and Training interventions;

   Related to the College's Strategic Goal One and Three:  (Increase•

   the number of students successfully entering the labour market…):

   Increased brand awareness (for recruitment and partnerships with

   Business and industry) and relationship building through enhanced

   communication strategies both internally and externally;  

   Related to the College's Strategic Goal Three and Five: (…responsive•

   to the demands of the market place and artisan training): Increased

   student recruitment efforts to achieve projected student numbers; 

   Related to the College's Strategic Goal Three: The administering and•

   reporting on the ndings of the Customer Satisfaction Survey;

   Related to the College's Strategic Goal Three: The successful hosting•

   of both internal and external events and functions. 

  3.6.1.1 Marketing & Communication
     Marketing Material such as yers, brochures, etc. are•

     strategically distributed on an ongoing basis; 

     Media employment: Different kinds of media are•

     employed via print media, audio and visual means for

     both editorial and advertising coverage as applicable; 

     TVET Times – A DHET Publication: The College's•

     newsworthy articles are submitted and many of the

     articles submitted were published;

     Relationship building to enhance the College brand;•

     External Stakeholder Relations and Community liaison:  •

     Successful collaboration with various organizations and

     individuals within the College's catchment area

     (Community Development Workers (CDWs), Peer  

     Educators, The Museum Society, Cultural Societies and

     School Boards among others); 
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     Student Recruitment;•

     Student Recruitment Campaigns: All possible marketing•

     means - such as but not limited to door-to-door

     campaigns, Community meetings, erection of poster

     boards on Municipality Street Poles - were used to

     encourage student recruitment; 

     Events and Functions: •

     The usual College events were successfully arranged

     including the keenly awaited Award's ceremony.

     Compliance:•

     External Audit ndings: Once again achieved 100%

     compliance as regards QA audited processes of the

     M&C Department.

 3.6.2 New Business and Programmes' Implementation

 3.6.2.1 The Youth Focus Programme of the WCED
   The Youth Focus project, an innovative project funded by the WCED,

   is very a very successful, ongoing programme.  Meant to career path

   (in the occupational pathway) Learners from Grade 9 and 10 who

   have failed multiple times, 2016 saw 66 NQF Level 2  Learners being

   placed in various workplaces for completion of the Learnership.

   Anecdotal feedback from the Facilitators and Learners indicates

   that the programme has a high socio-economic impact in the

   various communities spanning the College's catchment area.

 

 3.6.2.2 DRDLR: Department of Rural Development and Land Reform: 
   The partnership that was established with the Department of Rural

   Development has grown to the extent that the College has entered

   into an agreement with the Beaufort West Municipality to lease the

   Beaufort West Hub (built by the DRDLR) as the anchor tenant. The

   lease period ends in 2017 and is expected to be renewed as the

   current contract with the DRDLR is to be extended to 2018.

   The current occupational offerings are Business Administration, Early

   Childhood Development and End User Computing courses at this

   stage.

•



  3.6.2.3 Extended Public Works, WCED and Social Services:
    A substantial number of Learners were enrolled for the Early

    Childhood Development (ECD) Course in 2016. These

    participants were placed with various crèches to gain

    experiential Learning and upon completion, and being found

    competent, will receive their ofcial certicates from the ETDP

    SETA in due course.
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  3.6.2.4 National Skills Fund:
    The implementation of various full time (NCV, N1-N3 and N4- 

    N6), Learnership and Skills programmes is ongoing. Three

    hundred and thirty one (331) Learners completed both NCV

    and various Report 191 (“N”) courses in 2016. 

    The number of N4-N6 Learners placed in businesses is 28.

  3.6.2.5 Industry, Commerce and Communities:
    A DEDAT, THETA and SAOGA Partnership for Artisan

    Development planned for early 2016 is being successfully

    being rolled out.   

    Of note is that the College's rst trade test qualied artisan, Mr

    Hans de Villiers from Mossel Bay is set to graduate on 13 may

    2017 at the College's prestigious Award's Day Ceremony.   

    

    The above illustrates commendable team-work with both

    internal and external role-players!  It also indicates that the

    College is assisting the various needy communities in its

    catchment area.  Moreover, the roll-out of Artisan

    Development (AD) programmes is gaining momentum.

    

    The possibility of building various cutting edge trade related

    workshops in George subject to the negotiations with the

    George Municipality for designated land will take the AD

    programme to new levels.  However, the DHET and other role-

    players need to assist with infrastructure development and

    supply of equipment.

 3.6.3 Key Challenges Experienced in 2016
   • The dire need for the delivery of a broader range of

    Occupationally Directed Courses;

   • There is still a need for nalizing a core key stafng structure. 

    The reasons being twofold: 1. To ensure that the positive

    trajectory of the Branch is maintained and surpassed going

    forward.  2. To meet the demands by Council for non-core

    fundraising efforts that require additional staff;

   • To further manage change within the Branch and the College

    as a whole to meet the vision of the College and strategic

    direction of DHET,  Council and the SMT;

   • Availability of Artisan related workshops, staff and equipment.
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 3.6.4  Goals set for 2017
   Further improve on the aforementioned milestones: 

   • Setting, monitoring and achieving timely, attainable and

    sustainable student numbers as per the annual PQM. 

    Appropriate funding is key to the success of the

    aforementioned;

   • Encouraging support of staff and students through further

    improved internal communication to create good inter

    relationships and publicity of the College;

   • Broaden the scope of and continue to source new demand-

    led business and expand the service delivery of the Branch

    and College with a focus on quality teaching and Learning ;

   • Ensure that the College website serves as a communication

    and marketing tool of the College in an integrated manner;

   • Improve on internal and external communication;

   • Carry out research that informs the College as to the real

    needs of business and industry and the communities that it

    serves.

 3.6.5  Conclusion
   The Branch: Innovation and Development, as a key role-player - in

   supporting the College's operations nancially, Occupationally

   directed Education and Development delivery, student recruitment

   and events management - is still cautiously optimistic, yet committed

   and poised to condently play a vital role in achieving the

   respective DHET aligned goals in spite of the lack of appropriate

   staff, infrastructure and facilities for Teaching and Learning delivery.

   Mr N. Cona; Chairperson: Innovation and Development Committee
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4.  ACADEMIC BOARD REPORT
The Academic Board is well-structured and was fully functional during the 2016 academic 
year.  The Academic Board is constituted and guided by prescript of the Continuous 
Education and Training Act No 16 of 2006 regarding its functions and membership 
composition.  The members were duly elected from their various constituencies and the 
total membership comprises of 28 voting members who split into 16 lecturers from various 
study elds and 12 non-lecturing staff as well as 2 external Councilors.  The non-voting 
members consist of 7 staff members who play a critical role in the academic delivery and 
support areas. The Principal is the Chairperson of the meeting and the Deputy Principal 
Academic is the Deputy Chairperson of the meeting. A duly elected secretary is 
responsible for all minute taking processes and audio recording take place during all the 
meetings.

The meeting agenda is mainly standardized with key reporting functions under items for 
decision-making, recommendations based on presentations and discussions, as well as for 
noting items.  The main agenda items during the four quarterly meetings include for 
instance: Teaching and Learning issues which include assessment and examination results; 
Campus implementation reports on key challenges and successes; Approval of 
improvement strategies and innovations;  Approval of research areas  and the 
Programme Qualication Mix; Student support and development services; Academic 
Support, Student Job placement services; SRC reports; and Occupational Programme 
delivery and other special projects. 
The Academic Board meet four times a year during the four academic quarters and all 
four meetings took place during 2016.  An average of 80% meeting attendance by the 
members was recorded for 2016.  The meeting agenda and documentation is distributed 
by email (electronically by drop-box) at least 7 working days before the meeting date to 
allow members to familiarize themselves with the content and to be well-prepared for 
quality discussions, recommendations and decisions.

The Academic Board is a highly respected body within the College structure, which 
subscribes to high quality meeting procedures and conduct of members. The Academic 
Board add immense value to the overall governance of the College to remain in 
compliance with the applicable laws and other legislation that govern the TVET College 
sector.  Lastly, the Academic Board is committed to the overall continuous quality 
improvement of Teaching and Learning and all the supporting functions that contribute to 
a conducive environment for students to be successful.
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5.  STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE 
    COUNCIL REPORT
The Student Representative Council (SRC) is considered to be a statutory structure as 
provided for in the Higher Education Act. The SRC offers a variety of services to individual 
students and different student groupings. As such, the SRC is the highest decision-making 
structure of student governance in the TVET College.

The annual Leadership Camp took place during February 2016. The most important 
document highlighted is the SRC Constitution and all facets of this document were 
thoroughly addressed and discussed. The SRC President, Zithobile Rawana and the Vice 
President, Jerome Kele were elected at the Camp. A special visit and lunch with the 
Principal and SMT members along with their meaningful input on all College related 
matters was well received and a lengthy question and answer session followed. The 
emphasis and overall theme of the camp was on Ethical and Moral Leadership.  Various 
guest speakers approached the topic from different angles with some focussing on 
individual leadership styles, communication and the ability to inuence students positively.

The SRC is active on all six of our Campuses and various activities take place which are 
driven by the members. The College has had successful student functions including Mr and 
Miss Valentine, Mr and Miss Fresher, Mr and Miss Campus, including Inter-Campus Sport 
tournaments. The HEAIDS campaign, as well as visits by the Department of Health are 
driven intensely by the SRC members.  The active process of student concerns, routed 
through the SRC, are addressed and are successfully resolved. 

The SRC plays an integral role in managing student protests and has proven to be 
invaluable as a group in speaking as a collective. The aforementioned role of the SRC 
minimised much of the protest action experienced by the College.  Moreover, the SRC 
executives continually engage with the rest of their members as well as the student body 
centred on NSFAS Bursaries. The expectations of the students in relation to their 
responsibilities are focused on. 

 Of grave concern is the performance of the SRC as an entity is inconsistent across the six 
(6) Campuses and students are simply not motivated to stand for elections. When they do, 
they tend to not see their terms through to completion as they become de-motivated by 
undue negativity of their fellow students and they do not wish to add to their stress levels.  
The difcult challenge as mentioned including a full Academic programme makes the 
ongoing capacity building and motivation of SRC members difcult. 

Zithobile Rowana
2016 South Cape College SRC President
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Nature of business and  ac�vi�es To provide con�nuing educa�on and training to registered students
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Council's Responsibili�es and approval

The Council is required by the CET Act to maintain adequate accoun�ng records and is responsible for the content and

integrity of theses financial statements and related financial informa�on included in this report. It is the responsibility

of Council to ensure that these financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the College at the end of the

financial year and the results of its opera�ons and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with GRAP. The A-

G was engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all

financial records, related data and relevant par�es.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of GRAP including any interpreta�ons,

guidelines and direc�ves issued by the ASB.

These financial statements are based on appropriate accoun�ng policies, consistently applied and supported by

reasonable and prudent judgements and es�mates.

Council acknowledges that it is ul�mately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the

College and places considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment, which includes the

safeguarding of assets and compliance with relevant legisla�on. To enable the council to meet these responsibili�es,

the council sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing risk in a cost effec�ve manner. These standards include

the proper delega�on of responsibili�es within a clearly defined framework, effec�ve accoun�ng and other procedures,

and adequate segrega�on of du�es to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the

College and employees and management are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the

College's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk

management in the College is on iden�fying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the

College. While opera�ng risk cannot be fully eliminated, the College endeavours to minimize it by ensuring that

appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined

procedures and constraints.

The Council accepts its responsibility to ensure that the College is managed in a responsible manner, considering the

interest of all stakeholders, including the DHET, unions, employees, students, local communi�es and creditors.

Responsible management entails, inter alia, compliance with applicable statutory and regulatory requirements,

including risk management.

The Council is of the opinion, based on the informa�on and explana�ons given by management, that the system of

internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the prepara�on of the

financial statements and that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

The Council has reviewed the College’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2017 and, in the light of this

review and the current financial posi�on, it is sa�sfied that the College has, or has access to, adequate resources to

con�nue in opera�onal existence for the foreseeable future.

The College is dependent on DHET for con�nued funding of opera�ons in line with the annual DHET programme funding

alloca�on. These financial statements are prepared on the basis that the College is a going concern and that DHET has

neither the inten�on nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the College's opera�ons. 

The A-G is responsible for independently audi�ng and repor�ng on the College's financial statements and their report is

presented with these financial statements.

These financial statements set out on page 67 to 100 were approved by the Council and were signed on its behalf by:

Ms. N. Lichaba
Chairperson of the Council
18 July 2017
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The Principal (Accounting Ofcer) is required by the Continuing Education and Training Act 
No. 16 of 2006, as amended, to ensure that accurate accounting records are maintained 
and is responsible for the content and integrity of the nancial statements and related 
nancial information included in this report.  It is the responsibility of the Principal to ensure 
that the nancial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the College as at the end of 
the nancial year and the results of its operations and cash ows for the year then ended, in 
conformity with GRAP.  The Auditor-General was engaged to express an independent 
opinion on the nancial statements and was given unrestricted access to all nancial 
records, related data and relevant parties.
  
The nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with GRAP including any 
interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the ASB and in the manner required by 
the Minister of Higher Education and Training.

The nancial statements are based on appropriate accounting policies consistently 
applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Principal is responsible to maintain consistent, effective and efcient internal nancial 
control, which includes the safeguarding of assets and reducing risk in a cost effective 
manner according to the standards as set by Council.  The standards include the proper 
delegation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.  These controls are monitored 
throughout the College and employees and management are required to maintain the 
highest ethical standards in ensuring the College's business is conducted in a manner that in 
all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.  The focus of risk management in the 
College is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across 
the College.  The College endeavours to minimize risk by ensuring that appropriate 
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within 
predetermined procedures and constraints.  

The Principal accepts her responsibility to ensure that the College is managed in a 
responsible and accountable manner, considering the interest of all stakeholders, including 
the DHET, unions, employees, students, local communities and creditors.  Responsible 
management entails compliance with applicable statutory and regulatory requirements, 
including risk management.

The Principal is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by staff that 
the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the nancial records may 
be relied on for the preparation of the nancial statements and that the nancial 
statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  However, 
any system of internal nancial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, 
assurance against material misstatement or decit.

 
REPORT OF THE 
ACCOUNTING OFFICER



The College provided the College's cash ow forecast for the year to 31 December 
2016 to the Council for review.  Council, in the light of this review and the current 
nancial position, expressed its satisfaction that the College has, or has access to, 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The College is dependent on the DHET for continued funding of operations in line with 
the annual DHET program funding allocation. The nancial statements are prepared 
on the basis that the College is a going concern and that the DHET has neither the 
intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the College's 
operations.

The Auditor-General is responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the 
College's nancial statements and his report is presented with these nancial 
statements.

The EXCO of Council approved the nancial statements set out on pages 62 to 66 on 
18 July 2017.

Mrs. E.S.C.M. Potgieter
Principal (Accounting Ofcer)
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South Cape TVET College

Statement of financial posi�on

at 31 December 2016.
2016 2015

Note R000 R000
ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 40 874 45 842
Trade and other receivables from exchange transac�ons 4 10 253 19 114
Other receivables from non-exchange transac�ons 5 22 767 13 619
Inventories 6  248  113

74 142 78 688

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 134 520 135 507
Investment property 8 1 198 1 215

135 718 136 722

Total assets 209 860 215 410

LIABILITIES

Current liabili�es
Trade and other payables from exchange transac�ons 9 17 195 18 388
Provision 10 2 484 2 274
Short-term unspent condi�onal grants and receipts 11  235 2 901
Short-term por�on of long-term loan 12  550  524

20 464 24 087

Non-current liabili�es
Long-term loan 12  578 1 128

Total liabili�es 21 042 25 215

Net assets
Accumulated surplus 188 818 190 195

Total net assets and liabili�es 209 860 215 410
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South Cape TVET College

Statement of financial performance

for the year ended 31 December 2016.
2016 2015

Note R000 R000
Revenue

Revenue from exchange transac�ons

Tui�on and related fees 13  24 367 27 664
Rendering of services and sale of goods 14  14 492 18 261
Investment income 15  2 842 1 849

Total revenue from exchange transac�ons  41 701 47 774

Revenue from non-exchange transac�ons

Government grants and subsidies 16  92 028 115 997
Other sponsorship 17   1  -

Total revenue from non-exchange transac�ons  92 029 115 997

Total revenue  133 730 163 771

Expenditure
Employee-related expenditure 18 ( 80 802) (81 768)
Bad debt write-off and impairment 19 (11 402) (8 710)
Other opera�ng expenditure 20 (34 406) (49 329)

Expenditure before deprecia�on (126 610) (139 807)

Surplus before deprecia�on  7 120 23 964

Deprecia�on of property, plant and equipment 7; 8 (6 767) (6 366)

Surplus before (loss)/gain on assets   353 17 598

(Loss)/gain on assets 21 ( 1 730)  149

(Deficit)/surplus for year ( 1 377) 17 747
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South Cape TVET College

Statement of changes in net assets

for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Accumulated 

surplus

Note R000

Balance at 1 January 2015 172 448

Surplus for year as reported previously 18 441

Correc�on of error 23 ( 694)

Balance at 1 January 2016 190 195

Deficit for year (1 377)

Balance at 31 December 2016 188 818
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South Cape TVET College

Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2016.
2016 2015

Note R000 R000

Receipts
Tui�on fees and other government subsidies  29 927 92 568
Programme funding  23 292 20 678
Dona�on and other receipts   768  387

Total receipts  53 987 113 633

Payments
Employees ( 31 202) (37 535)
Suppliers ( 22 510) (50 969)
Finance charges (  76) ( 108)

Total payments ( 53 788) (88 612)

Net cash flows from opera�ng ac�vi�es 22   199 25 021

Cash flows from inves�ng ac�vi�es
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ( 7 607) (8 168)
Interest received  2 842 1 849
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment   122  -

Net cash flows from inves�ng ac�vi�es ( 4 643) (6 319)

Cash flows from financing ac�vi�es

Repayment of long-term borrowings (  524) ( 752)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents ( 4 968) 17 950

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 45 842 27 892

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 40 874 45 842
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1.1 Presentation of Financial statements and basis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally 
Recognized Accounting Practice (GRAP) for the first time for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 
in the manner prescribed by the Minister of Higher Education and Training in terms of the Continuing 
Education and Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended. 
 
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in 
accordance with the historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified 
otherwise.  
 
In the absence of an approved and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material 
transactions, events or conditions were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of 
GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5. Refer note 2 for further information. 
 
Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or 
permitted by a Standard of GRAP. 
 

1.2 Statement of compliance 
These accounting policies comply, in all material respects, with Standards of GRAP. 

 

1.3 Presentation currency 
      These financial statements are presented in South African rand, which is the functional currency of 

 the college. 
 
1.4 Going concern assumption 
      These financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the college will 

continue to operate as a going concern for the next twelve months. 
 
1.5 Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty 

The use of judgment, estimates and assumptions is inherent to the process of preparing financial 
statements. These judgments, estimates and assumptions affect the amounts presented in the 
financial statements. Uncertainties about these estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes 
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the relevant asset or liability in future 
periods. 

 
1.5.1Judgments 
In the process of applying these accounting policies, management has made the following judgements 
in respect of the provision for doubtful debts and the useful lives and residual values of PPE that may 
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 
 
Classification of land and buildings as property, plant and equipment or investment property 
Judgement is needed to determine whether a property qualifies as investment property. The college 
developed the following criteria so that it can exercise that judgement consistently in accordance with 
the definition of investment property:  
 
- The purpose for which the property is used i.e. if for educational purposes then the property is not 

regarded as an investment property. 
- If the property is held for the purpose of generating rental income or to appreciate in value, then the 

property is regarded as an investment property. 
- If other assets used in conjunction with the property to provide education, then the property is not  

regarded as an investment property. 
- Land held for a currently undetermined future use is regarded as investment property. 
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Classification of non-current, non-financial assets as cash-generating or non-cash- 
generating 
Judgement is needed to determine whether an asset is cash-generating or non-cash-generating. The 
college developed the following criteria so that it can exercise that judgement consistently in 
accordance with the definitions: 
 
The purpose for which the asset was acquired i.e. if for education purposes at no consideration 
(no fees), then the asset is regarded as a non-cash-generating asset. If to earn positive cash flows on 
a commercial basis, then the asset is regarded as cash-generating. 
 
1.5.2 Estimates 
Estimates are informed by historical experience, information currently available to management, 
assumptions, and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These 
estimates are reviewed on a regular basis. Changes in estimates that are not due to errors are 
processed in the period of the review and applied prospectively. 
In the process of applying the college’s accounting policies the following estimates, were made: 
 
Debt impairment 
The college assesses its financial assets for impairment at the end of each financial year. In 
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the college makes 
judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated 
future cash flows from a financial asset. 
 
The impairment is considered first for individually significant financial assets and then calculated on a 
portfolio basis for individually insignificant financial assets, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for 
national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date 
that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to items in the 
portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emergence period. 
 
Financial asset at cost 
The college first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial 
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not 
individually significant. If the college determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an 
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in the group of 
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. 
Asset that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to 
be recognised are not included in the collective assessment of impairment. 
 
The entity assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In 
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the entity makes 
judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated 
future cash flows from financial asset. 
 
The impairment for trade receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, 
adjusted for national and industry- specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the 
reporting date that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan 
balances in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emergence period. 
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Non-financial asset impairment 
In testing for, and determining the value-in-use of non-financial assets, management is required to rely 
on the use of estimates about the asset’s ability to continue to generate cash flows (in the case of 
cash-generating assets). For non-cash-generating assets, estimates are made regarding the 
depreciated replacement cost, restoration cost, or service units of the asset, depending on the nature 
of the impairment and the availability of information. 
 
Provisions 
Provisions are measured at the present value of the estimated future outflows required to settle the 
obligation. In the process of determining the best estimate of the amounts that will be required in future 
to settle the provision management considers the weighted average probability of the potential 
outcomes of the provisions raised. This measurement entails determining what the different potential 
outcomes are for a provision as well as the financial impact of each of those potential outcomes. 
Management then assigns a weighting factor to each of these outcomes based on the probability that 
the outcome will materialize in future. The factor is then applied to each of the potential outcomes and 
the factored outcomes are then added together to arrive at the weighted average value of the 
provisions. 
 
Useful lives and residual values of assets; depreciation and amortisation 
The college's management determines the estimated useful lives and residual values of all non-
current, non-financial assets. These estimates are based on industry norms and then adjusted to be 
college specific. Management determines at reporting date whether there are any indications that the 
college's expectations of useful lives or residual values have changed from previous estimates. Where 
indications exist the expected useful lives or residual values are revised accordingly. 
 
Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
respectively are determined with reference to the useful lives and residual values of the underlying 
items. The useful lives and residual values of assets are based on management’s estimation of the 
asset’s condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current use, and expected 
future use and the college’s expectations about the availability of finance to replace the asset at the 
end of its useful life. In evaluating condition and use of the asset management considers the impact of 
technology and minimum service requirements of the assets. Generally, depreciation is accrued over 
the useful lives of assets on a straight-line basis. Refer to the respective notes for the carrying 
amounts of non-financial assets affected. 
 
Effective interest rate 
The college uses an appropriate interest rate, taking into account guidance provided in GRAP, and 
applying judgment to the specific circumstances, to discount future cash flows, to the present value of 
the item being discounted. 
 
Fair value determination of properties (excluding heritage assets) 
In determining the fair value of investment property (and / or property, plant and equipment) donated 
or acquired for no consideration, the college applies a valuation methodology to determine the fair 
value of the properties based on any one of, or a combination of the following factors: 
 
- The market related selling price of the property; or 
- The market related rental that can be earned for the property; or 
- The market related selling price of similar properties in the area; or 
- The rentals currently or previously earned by the property. 
 
Where the above information is not available or reliably determinable the college determines an 
approximation of fair-value by estimating the Depreciated Replacement Cost of the asset as described 
in Directive 7 The Application of Deemed Cost on the Adoption of Standards of GRAP. 
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1.6 Investment property 
Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial 
measurement. 
 
Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as 
at the date of acquisition. Investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Depreciation is recognised to write down the cost, less estimated residual value by equal installments 
over the useful life of the property. Investment property is depreciated over 50 years. 
 
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment property is the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in surplus 
or deficit in the period of retirement or disposal. 
 
Compensation from third parties for investment property that was impaired, lost or given up is 
recognised in surplus or deficit when the compensation becomes receivable. 

 
Deemed cost 
When the college initially recognises an asset using the Standards of GRAP, it measures such assets 
using either cost or fair value at the date of acquisition (acquisition cost). Where the accounting for 
assets is incomplete at the start of the reporting year as the acquisition cost of an asset is not 
available at that time, acquisition cost is measured using a surrogate value (deemed cost) at the date 
the college adopted the Standards of GRAP (the measurement date). Deemed cost is determined as 
the fair value of an asset at the measurement date.  
 

1.7 Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment include: Land, Buildings, Capital work in progress, Leasehold 
improvements, Computers, Vehicles, Furniture and fittings, Machinery and equipment, Educational 
equipment and text books. 
 
Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable 
to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 
 
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of 
acquisition. Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-
monetary asset or assets, or a combination of assets and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is 
initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's 
deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 
 
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it 
is located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the college is obligated 
to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it 
for purposes other than the production of inventories. 
Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when 
the item is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management. 
 
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful 
lives to their estimated residual value. Estimated useful lives are: 
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Land    Indefinite 
Buildings   50 years 
Computers   5 to 10 years 
Vehicles    10 to 15 years 
Furniture and equipment  6 to 10 years 
Educational equipment  6 to 10 years 
Text books   3 years 

 
At the reporting date it is assessed whether there are any indications that the college's expectations of 
useful lives or residual values have changed from previous estimates. Where such indications do 
exist, the expected useful lives or residual values are revised accordingly. 
 
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the 
total cost of the item is depreciated separately. The depreciation charge for each period is recognised 
in surplus or deficit. 
 
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there 
are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 
 
The gain or loss, arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included 
in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising, from the derecognition of 
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 
 
Deemed cost 
When the college initially recognises an asset using the Standards of GRAP, it measures such assets 
using either cost or fair value at the date of acquisition (acquisition cost). Where the accounting for 
assets is incomplete at the start of the reporting year as the acquisition cost of an asset is not 
available at that time, acquisition cost is measured using a surrogate value (deemed cost) at the date 
the college adopted the Standards of GRAP (the measurement date). Deemed cost is determined as 
the fair value of an asset at the measurement date.  
 
Campuses or other property used and controlled, but not owned by the college 
Certain campuses and other property are used by the college and are not registered in the name of 
the college.  The lack of legal ownership could affect whether or not the college has control over the 
campus. Where, inter alia, beneficial control can be illustrated, the campus and other property in 
question are recognised, measured and included in the financial statements as either property, plant 
and equipment in terms of the definition of an asset as per the Framework for the Preparation and 
Presentation of Financial Statements or the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment in GRAP 17 
Property, Plant and Equipment. 
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1.8 Financial instruments 
 
1.8.1 Types and recognition 

The college has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face 
of the statement of financial position or in the notes thereto: 
 
Class                                                                                                   Category 
Cash and cash equivalents                                                                 Financial asset at fair value                                                                                          
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions                  Financial asset at fair value                                                                                                
 
The college has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the 
face of the statement of financial position or in the notes thereto: 
 
Class                                                                                                  Category 
DBSA Loan                                                                                         Financial liability at amortized cost    

                                                               
The college recognizes financial assets using trade date accounting. 
 
The college measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction 
costs (for financial instruments at amortised cost) that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of the financial instrument. 
 
The college first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial 
recognition, the college analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each 
component separately. The college accounts for that part of a concessionary loan that is: 
 
- a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
 Statements, where it is the issuer of the loan; or 

- non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange 
 Transactions (Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan. 

 
 The college measures all financial instruments after initial recognition as follows: 
- Financial instruments at fair value: Fair-value at reporting date 
- Financial instruments at amortised cost: Amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less  
 any impairment  losses. 

- Financial instruments at cost. Cost, less any impairment losses. 
 
If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at 
fair value, the college reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the 
date that fair value is no longer available becomes the cost. 
 
If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure 
was previously not available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair 
value, the college reclassifies the instrument from cost to fair value. 
 
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured 
at fair value is recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 
For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is 
recognised in surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or 
impaired, or through the amortisation process. 
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1.8.2 Impairment and collectability of financial assets 
The college assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that 
a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 
 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost 
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have 
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced directly through the use of an allowance account (debt impairment 
provision). The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not 
result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have 
been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of 
the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 
Financial assets measured at cost: 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual 
interest that is not measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the 
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the 
financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market 
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed. 

 
The carrying amounts of the transferred assets are allocated between the rights or obligations retained 
and those transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights 
and obligations are measured at their fair values at that date. Any difference between the 
consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in surplus or 
deficit in the period of the transfer. 

 
If the college transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for de-recognition in its entirety and 
retains the right to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognises either a servicing asset or a 
servicing liability for that servicing contract. If the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the 
college adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the servicing obligation is 
recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate 
compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount 
determined on the basis of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger financial asset. 

 
If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the 
college obtaining a new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the 
college recognises the new financial asset, financial liability or servicing liability at fair value. 

 
On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and 
the sum of the consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 
If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for de-
recognition in its entirety, the previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated 
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is derecognised, based on the 
relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained servicing 
asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount 
allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised 
is recognised in surplus or deficit. 
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If a transfer does not result in de-recognition because the college has retained substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred asset, the college continues to recognise the 
transferred asset in its entirety and recognises a financial liability for the consideration received. In 
subsequent periods, the college recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any expense 
incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and 
the associated expenses are offset. 

 
1.8.3 Financial liabilities 

The college removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial 
position when it is extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled, expires or waived. 
 
An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different 
terms is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability 
is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part 
of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and having recognised a new 
financial liability. 
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) 
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, 
forgiven or assumed by another college by way of a non-exchange transaction are accounted for in 
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and 
Transfers). 
 
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement 
of financial position when the college currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 
In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for de-recognition, the college 
does not offset the transferred asset and the associated liability. 
 

1.9 Statutory receivables 
Funding receivable from DHET arises from non-contracted arrangements as the basis for DHET 
funding is found in the Division of Revenue Act. Cash receivable from DHET as part of programme 
funding is regarded as a "statutory receivable". 

 
The statutory receivable is initially measured at the transaction amount and subsequently measured 
using the cost-method, which changes the initial measurement to reflect any impairment or amounts 
derecognised. Other elements of the DHET programme funding are only recorded once DHET has 
effected the transaction (i.e. payment of staff through PERSAL) and no receivable is recorded as the 
amount associated is not paid in cash or another financial asset. 
The statutory receivable is included in other receivables from non-exchange transactions. 
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1.10 Leases 
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership. 
When a lease includes both land and building elements, the college assesses the classification of 
each element separately. 
 
Finance leases 
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at 
amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum 
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial 
position as a finance lease obligation. 
 

      The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the rate 
implicit in the lease. 
 
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the 
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability. Any contingent rents are 
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
Operating leases 
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are 
recognised as an operating lease asset or liability. 
 

1.11 Inventories 
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-
exchange transaction, then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Subsequently, 
inventories held for commercial purposes are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
 
The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out cost formula. The same cost formula is 
used for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the college. 
 
Recognition as an expense 
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in 
the period in which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are 
recognised when the goods are distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories are 
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of 
any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement 
cost, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period 
in which the reversal occurs. 
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1.12 Impairment of cash-generating assets 
Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the college with the primary objective of generating a 
commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-
orientated college, it generates a commercial return. 
 
Identification 
When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired. 
 
The college assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating 
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the college estimates the recoverable amount of 
the asset. 
 
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the college also tests a cash-generating 
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for 
use for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This 
impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an intangible asset was initially 
recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment before 
the end of the current reporting period. 
 
Value in use 
Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows 
expected to be derived from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its 
useful life. 
 
When estimating the value in use of an asset, the college estimates the future cash inflows and 
outflows to be derived from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the college 
applies the appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows. 
 
The discount rate is a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, 
represented by the current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the 
future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. 
 
Recognition and measurement (individual asset) 
If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. An 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 
 
Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 
 
When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-
generating asset to which it relates, the college recognises a liability only to the extent that is a 
requirement in the Standard of GRAP. 
 
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-
generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying 
amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
 
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the 
individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the 
college determines the recoverable amount of the cash- generating unit to which the asset belongs 
(the asset's cash-generating unit). 
 
The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is determined. 
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An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is 
less than the carrying amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of 
the cash-generating assets of the unit on a pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset 
in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as impairment losses on individual 
assets. 
 
In allocating an impairment loss, the college does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below 
the highest of: 
- its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable); 
- its value in use, being the depreciated replacement cost approach and 
- nil 
 
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated 
proportionately to the other cash-generating assets of the unit. 
 
Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying 
amount of that non- cash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating 
unit prior to estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit. 
 
The college assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If 
any such indication exists, the college estimates the recoverable amount of that asset. 
 
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has 
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable 
amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset 
attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset in prior periods. 
 
A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or 
deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a 
revaluation increase. 
After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the 
cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised 
carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets 
of the unit pro rata with the carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts 
are treated as reversals of impairment losses for individual assets. No part of the amount of such a 
reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contributing service potential to a cash-generating 
unit. 
 
In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an 
asset is not increased above the lower of: 
- its recoverable amount (if determinable); and 
- the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no 
impairment loss been  
  recognised for the asset in prior periods. 
 
The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the 
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. 
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The re-designation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a 
non-cash-generating asset to a cash-generating asset only occurs when there is clear evidence that 
such a re-designation is appropriate. 

 
1.13 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.  
 
The college assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-
generating asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the college estimates the recoverable 
service amount of the asset. 
 
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it 
is impaired. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any impairment loss of 
a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 
 
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above 
the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential 
through depreciation (amortisation). 
 
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the college also tests a non-cash-
generating intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not 
yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable 
service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an intangible asset 
was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for 
impairment before the end of the current reporting period. 
 
Value in use 
Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating asset's 
remaining service potential. The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-
generating asset is determined using the following approach: 
 
Depreciated replacement cost approach 
The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as 
the depreciated replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace 
the asset’s gross service potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An 
asset may be replaced either through reproduction (replication) of the existing asset or through 
replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as the 
reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation 
calculated on the basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the 
asset. 
The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The 
rationale is that the college would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be 
replaced or reproduced is an overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain 
features which are unnecessary for the goods or services the asset provides. Overcapacity assets are 
assets that have a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or services the 
asset provides. The determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an 
optimised basis thus reflects the service potential required of the asset. 
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Restoration cost approach 
Restoration cost is the cost of restoring the service potential of an asset to its pre-impaired level. The 
present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the 
estimated restoration cost of the asset from the current cost of replacing the remaining service 
potential of the asset before impairment. The latter cost is determined as the depreciated reproduction 
or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower. 
 
Service units approach 
The present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by reducing the current 
cost of the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment, to conform to the reduced 
number of service units expected from the asset in its impaired state. The current cost of replacing the 
remaining service potential of the asset before impairment is determined as the depreciated 
reproduction or replacement cost of the asset before impairment, whichever is lower. 
 
Recognition and measurement 
When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-
cash-generating asset to which it relates, the college recognises a liability only to the extent that is a 
requirement in the Standards of GRAP. 
 
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-
generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised 
carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
 
Reversal of an impairment loss 
The college assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. If any such indication exists, the college estimates the recoverable service amount of that 
asset. 
 
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has 
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the 
last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable 
service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of 
an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset in prior periods. 
 
A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus 
or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a 
revaluation increase. 
 
After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the 
non-cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s 
revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful 
life. 
 
Re-designation 
The re-designation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a 
non-cash-generating asset to a cash-generating asset only occurs when there is clear evidence that 
such a re-designation is appropriate. 
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1.14 Employee benefits 
  When an employee has rendered service to the college during a reporting period, the college 

recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for that service: 

  - as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid 
exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the college recognise that excess as an asset  
(prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future  
payments or a cash refund; and 

    - as an expense, unless another Standard of GRAP requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in 
the cost of an asset. 

     
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as employees render 
services which increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the 
absence occurs.  The college measures the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences  
as the additional amount that the college expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has  
accumulated at the reporting date. 

 
The college recognises the expected cost of bonus; incentive and performance related payments 
when the college has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of 
past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the 
college has no realistic alternative but to make the payments. 
 

Other long-term employee benefits 
Other long-term employee benefits include:  
- long-term compensated absences such as long service or sabbatical leave; 
- other long service benefits; 
- long-term disability benefits;   
- bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable twelve months or more after the end  

of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service and 
- compensation payable by the college until an individual enters new employment. 

 
The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment using the above  
accounting methodology. Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments 
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to surplus or deficit in the period in  
which they arise. These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified actuaries using the 
projected unit credit methods. 

 
For other long-term employee benefits, the college recognises the net total of the following amounts as  
expense or revenue, except to the extent that another Standard requires or permits their inclusion in  
the cost of an asset: 
- current service cost; 
- interest cost; 
- the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement right recognised as an asset; 
- actuarial gains and losses, which shall all be recognised immediately;  
- past service cost, which shall all be recognised immediately; and  
- the effect of any curtailments or settlements 
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Employee-related costs  
In terms of the CET Act and DHET Circular 1 of  2015, with effect from 1 April 2015, all non-
management personnel of the college, appointed and remunerated through the Department of 
Education in the province (PERSAL) and the provincial allocation or programme funding, have migrated 
to DHET and are DHET employees. Non-management personnel not remunerated from provincial 
allocations or programme funding remain employees of the college as they are appointed by the 
college. For the period 1 January 2015 to 31 March 2015, non-management personnel remained 
employees of the college.  
 
For the period 1 January 2015 to 31 March 2015 
Management and other personnel are either remunerated directly by the college or by the provincial 
Department of Education, via Persal, on behalf of DHET. As management personnel are not college 
employees, their remuneration cannot be classified as an employee expense of the college and is 
therefore classified as "Services in kind". 
 
For the period 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2016 
Management and other personnel (excluding college employees) are remunerated by DHET via Persal. 
The remuneration of these personnel is therefore classified as "Services in kind", and is included in 
employee cost. 
 
Services in kind 
The remuneration by DHET of all employees employed at the college during the year is classified as  
Services in kind.                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

1.15 Provisions and contingencies 
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the 
present obligation at the reporting date. Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount 
of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. 
 
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the liability. Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision, 
is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement is recognised when it is virtually 
certain that reimbursement will be received if the college settles the obligation. 
 
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation. 
 
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the 
passage of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense. A provision is used only for 
expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating deficits. 
 
If a college has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is 
recognised and measured as a provision. 
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1.16 Revenue from exchange transactions 
   Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade 

discounts and volume rebates. 
 

Sale of goods 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied: 
- the college has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the  

goods; 
- the college retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with 
 ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; 
- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
- it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to 
 the college; and 
- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 
 
Rendering of services 
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, 
revenue associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the 
transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the 
following conditions are satisfied: 
- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
- it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to 
 the college; 
- the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and 
- the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured 
 reliably. 
 
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, 
revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.  
 
Tuition fees 
Tuition fees are recognised over the period of instruction. 
 
Interest received  
Interest is recognised in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 
 

1.17 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
Recognition 
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as 
revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. 
 
As the college satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources 
from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability 
recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction. 
 
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets 
recognised by the college. 
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When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the college recognises an asset, it also recognises 
revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, 
unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be 
measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and 
the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently 
reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the 
liability is recognised as revenue. 
 

Programme funding  
Programme funding is allocated to the college by DHET in terms of the CET Act and the National 
Norms and Standards for funding of TVET Colleges and is determined by the estimated full time 
equivalent students (FTEs) of the college.  The allocation is done based on the projected FTEs for the 
year and if the college fails to register the projected FTEs, a portion of the programme funding can be 
clawed back in the following year. 
 

The programme funding is allocated by DHET during their financial year which is from April to March, 
but for the college the funds pertain to the college academic and financial year which is from January to 
December.  Once the college has registered the projected number of FTEs, the condition of the 
programme funding grant has been met and the grant is recognised in full. 
 
The programme funding is paid out partly in cash tranches, paid to the college, and partly through the 
Persal system of the Education Department, directly to employees and management of the college.  
The method and timing of payment of the grant does, however, not influence the recognition of 
revenue. 
 
Transfers 
Apart from Services in kind, which are only recognised as indicated below, the college recognises an 
asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy 
the criteria for recognition as an asset. 

 
Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
 
Concessionary loans received 
A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related. 
The portion of the loan that is repayable, along with any interest payments, is an exchange transaction 
and is accounted for in accordance with the standard of GRAP on financial Instruments. The off-market 
portion of the loan is a non-exchange transaction. The off-market portion of the loan that is recognised 
as non-exchange revenue is calculated as the difference between the proceeds received from the loan, 
and the present value of the contractual cash flows of the loan, discounted using market related rate of 
interest. 

 
Debt forgiveness and assumption of liabilities 
The college recognises revenue in respect of debt forgiveness when the former debt no longer meets 
the definition of availability or satisfies the criteria for recognition as a liability, provided that the debt 
forgiveness does not satisfy the definition of a contribution from owners. 
Revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured at the carrying amount of debt forgiven. 
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1.18 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
 

1.19 Related parties 
The College has adopted IPSAS 20 in reporting on related parties. A related party is a DHET entity,  
or a person, with the ability to control the other party, or exercise significant influence over the other  
party.  
 
Members of senior management and those charged with the governance of the college are regarded  
as persons with significant influence.  
 
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are  
disclosed. 

 
1.20 Comparative figures 

Certain assertions have been reclassified and the related comparative figures amended. Additional or 
enhanced disclosure requirements have necessitated additional changes to comparative figures.  

Where accounting errors have been identified in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively 
as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has 
been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as 
is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. 
 

1.21 Commitments 
The college discloses each class of capital assets (Property, plant and equipment and Investment 
properties) recognised in the financial statements as well as future minimum lease payments under 
non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods: 
- Not later than one year, 
- Later than one year and not later than five years, and 
- Later than five years. 

 
1.22 Events after the reporting date 

Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between 
the reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of 
events can be identified: 
- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the 
reporting date); and 
- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after 
the reporting date). 
 
The college adjusts the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect adjusting events after 
the reporting date. Amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect non-adjusting events after 
the reporting date are not adjusted. 



South Cape TVET College 2016 Annual Report

89

     South Cape TVET College 

      Accounting policies 

 

2. Standards, amendments to Standards, Directives and Interpretations issued but not yet  
Effective 
The following Standards of GRAP and/or amendments thereto have been approved by the ASB, but will  
only become effective in future periods or have not been given an effective date by the Minister. 
The College has not early adopted any of the new Standards or amendments thereto, but has referred to  
them for guidance in developing its accounting policies in accordance with GRAP 3 read with Directive 5: 
 
 
Title of the Standard and nature of impending changes in accounting 
policy and expected impact 
 

 
Effective for periods 
starting on or after 

 
GRAP 16 Investment property 
Clarification of conditions necessary to classify property as investment 
property. Increased disclosure relating to repairs and maintenance and 
long overdue projects. 
 

 
1 April 2016 

 
GRAP 17 Property, plant and equipment  
Increased disclosure relating to repairs and maintenance and long 
overdue projects. Encouraged disclosure removed. 
 

 
1 April 2016 

 
GRAP 20 Related party disclosures 
Currently used as guidance for accounting policies, therefor no impact 
expected on initial adoption. 
 

 
Not yet determined 

 
GRAP 32 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor: None 
 

 
Not yet determined 

 
GRAP 108 Statutory Receivables 
No changes to recognition and measurement are expected, but additional 
disclosures and separate classification in the notes will be done on 
adoption. 
 

 
Not yet determined 

 
GRAP 109 Accounting by s and agents  
No changes to recognition and measurement are expected, but additional 
disclosures in the notes will be done on adoption. 
 

 
Not yet determined 

 
IGRAP 17 Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Service 
Concession Arrangements where a Grantor controls a significant 
residual interest in an asset: None 
 

 
Not yet determined 
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2016 2015
R000 R000

3. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
Cash on call deposit 16 102 24 454
Cash in current accounts 11 898 9 385
Cash in short-term investment 12 873 12 001
Cash on hand  1  2

40 874 45 842

Cash and cash equivalents not available for use by the College:
Rela�ng to student allowances 6 740 4 175
Rela�ng to grants where condi�ons have not been met  235 2 901
Rela�ng to other receipts where condi�ons have not been met 8 278 11 866

15 253 18 942

4. Trade and other receivables from exchange transac�ons
Student receivables 22 895 31 980
Na�onal Government 7 174 7 647
Provincial Government  462  48
Interest receivable  231  240
Prepayments  72  65
Employee advances  66  66
Deposits  34  21
Other receivables  303  258
Less: Impairment (20 985) (21 211)

Total trade and other receivables 10 253 19 114

Receivables age analysis
Student receivables
Current 2 001  574
31 - 60 days 1 789  735
61 - 90 days 1 380  710
91 - 120 days 3 070  743
120 + days 14 655 29 218

22 895 31 980

Na�onal Government
Current 2 419 1 686
120 + days 4 755 5 961

7 174 7 647

Reconcilia�on of debt impairment
Balance at beginning of year 21 211 12 501
Doub�ul debts wri�en off (11 629)  -
Reversal of impairment (9 582) (12 501)
Contribu�ons to impairment 20 985 21 211

Balance at end of year 20 985 21 211
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016 - con�nued
2016 2015
R000 R000

4. Trade and other receivables from exchange transac�ons (con�nued)

Trade and other receivables past due date but not impaired

Neither past due nor impaired 2 269  57
Less than 30 days 2 875 2 269
31 - 60 days  914  788
61 - 90 days  887  715
91 - 120 days 1 397  746
120 + days 1 911 7 615

10 253 12 190

Trade and other receivables impaired
6 to 9 months past due 3 018  -
More than 9 months past due date 17 967 21 211

20 985 21 211

Credit quality - determined internally
Student receivables 4 130 2 071
Na�onal Government 1 954 1 715
Provincial Government  462  48
Employee advances  -  49
Prepayments  72  36
Deposits  34  21

6 652 3 940

Fair value of trade and other receivables

5. Other receivables from non-exchange transac�ons
Statutory receivable: Government grant and subsidy
Employee cost incurred by College 16 301 9 634
Direct subsidy 6 466 3 985

22 767 13 619

The amount is neither past due nor impaired.
Credit quality - internally determined 22 767 13 619

6. Inventories
Consumable stores  248  113

The carrying value of other receivables approximates its fair value.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value. Fair value 

of student receivables is net of amounts received subsequent to year-end, and 

outstanding NSFAS bursary alloca�ons.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 - con�nued

7. Property, plant and equipment
Cost/ 

Deemed 

cost

Accumulated 

deprecia�on 

and 

impairment

Carrying 

value

Cost/ 

Deemed cost

Accumulated 

deprecia�on 

and 

impairment

Carrying 

value

R000 R000 R000 R000 R000 R000

Land 17 731 17 731 17 175  - 17 175
Buildings and leasehold improvements* 122 871 (21 043) 101 828 113 799 (18 095) 95 704
Capital work-in-progress 1 916 1 916 6 885  - 6 885
Computers 10 382 (5 678) 4 704 8 796 (4 139) 4 657
Vehicles 4 665 (2 733) 1 932 4 798 (2 369) 2 429
Furniture and equipment 10 825 (6 282) 4 543 10 489 (4 896) 5 593
Text books 3 635 (2 264) 1 371 3 081 ( 620) 2 461
Educa�onal equipment 1 280 ( 785)  495 1 228 ( 625)  603

173 305 (38 785) 134 520 166 251 (30 744) 135 507

Reconcilia�on of property, plant and equipment:

Carrying 

value at 

beginning of 

year

Addi�ons and 

fair value 

increase

Reclassified 

or transfers

Deprecia�on 

and 

impairment Disposals

Carrying 

value at end 

of year

R000 R000 R000 R000 R000 R000

Land 17 175  556  - 17 731
Buildings and leasehold improvements* 95 704 2 655 6 417 (2 949)  - 101 827
Capital work-in-progress 6 885 1 448 (6 417)  -  - 1 916
Computers 4 657 1 591  - (1 542) ( 2) 4 704
Vehicles 2 429  -  - ( 405) ( 91) 1 933
Furniture and equipment 5 593  335  - (1 385)  - 4 543
Text books 2 461 1 526 (1 867) ( 748) 1 372
Educa�onal equipment  603  52  - ( 161)  -  494

135 507 8 163  - (8 309) ( 841) 134 520

Reconcilia�on of property, plant and equipment: 

Carrying 

value at 

beginning of 

year Addi�ons

Reclassified 

or transfers

Deprecia�on 

and 

impairment Disposals

Carrying 

value at end 

of year

R000 R000 R000 R000 R000 R000

Land 17 173  2  -  -  - 17 175
Buildings and leasehold improvements* 96 319 1 335  - (1 950)  - 95 704
Capital work-in-progress 5 011 1 874  -  -  - 6 885
Computers 3 824 2 060  - (1 227)  - 4 657
Vehicles 2 865  -  - ( 430) ( 6) 2 429
Furniture and equipment 7 102  563 ( 758) (1 314)  - 5 593
Text books 1 273 1 662  627 (1 101) 2 461
Educa�onal equipment  -  2  758 ( 157)  -  603

133 567 7 498  627 (6 179) ( 6) 135 507

2016 2015
*Carrying value analysed as follows: R000 R000

Owned 93 872 86 086

Not owned 9 517 9 619

122  451

Analisys of capital work-in-progress
Campus upgrade 1 916 6 885

Aggregate value of items using deemed cost 68 066 96 095

Aggregate amount of adjustments to carrying values reported previously  -  6

Repairs and maintenance expenditure
Buildings  635  237
Vehicles  329  190
Computers and other equipment  373  376

1 337  803

Contractual commitments - Capital work-in-progress (buildings) 8 197 10 242

No item of property, plant or equipment has been pledged as security.

2016 2015

2016

2015

Compensa�on received for property, plant and equipment 

impaired, lost or given up - included in opera�ng surplus:
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7. Property, plant and equipment - con�nued
Proper�es over which the college has control but not legal �tle, are as follows:

Bitou campus (Ple�enberg Bay) - Bitou municipality
George campus - Department of Public Works
Hessequa campus (Riversdale) - Department of Public Works

8. Investment property

Cost

Accumulated 

deprecia�on

Carrying 

value Cost

Accumulated 

deprecia�on

Carrying 

value

R000 R000 R000 R000 R000 R000

Retail - Guest house 1 835 ( 637) 1 198 1 835 ( 620) 1 215

Reconcilia�on of investment property

Carrying 

value at 

beginning 

of year Deprecia�on

Carrying 

value at end 

of year

Carrying value 

at beginning 

of year Deprecia�on

Carrying 

value at end 

of year

R000 R000 R000 R000 R000 R000

Retail - Guest house 1 215 ( 17) 1 198 1 236 ( 21) 1 215

Investment property has not been pledged as security.

Other informa�on 2016 2015

R000 R000
Revenue  241  280
Repairs and maintenance  33  15
Other opera�ng expenditure 1 873 1 828

9. Trade and other payables from exchange transac�ons
S�pend monies 7 362 8 496
NSFAS 6 740 4 175
Trade creditors 1 464 2 045
Income received in advance  916 3 370
Other payables  370  -
Opera�ng lease liability  103  105
Leave accrual  240  197

17 195 18 388

10. Provision
Audit fee provision 2 484 2 274
Reconcilia�on of movement:
Balance at beginning of year 2 274  155
Provision made 2 484 2 274
Amount u�lized (2 274) ( 155)

2 484 2 274

11. Unspent condi�onal grants
SETAs  234  584
NSF  1 2 296
Other condi�onal grant  -  21

 235 2 901

12. Loan
Unsecured loan 1 128 1 652
Less: short-term por�on ( 550) ( 524)

 578 1 128

2016 2015

The Fosters Manor Guesthouse is classified as a heritage building. Improvement and 

maintenance is subject to prior approval from the Department of Sport, Arts and Culture.

The loan bears interest at 5% per annum and is repayable in 20 bi-annual 

instalments of R300 000. The last payment is due on 31 December 2018. The 

outstanding balance has been ceded to the lender.
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2016 2015
R000 R000

13. Tui�on and related fees
Tui�on fees funded privately
NC(V)  2 391 6 762
Report 191  1 987 1 083
Residen�al fees  2 328 1 234
Transport, examina�on and other fees   572  675

 7 278 9 754

Tui�on fees funded by NSFAS
NC(V)  13 363 12 161
Report 191  3 020 1 823
Residen�al fees   555 3 820
Transport fees   151  106

 17 089 17 910

Total tui�on and related fees  24 367 27 664

14. Rendering of services and sale of goods
Rendering of services
Occupa�onal programmes  14 021 17 521
Guesthouse revenue   241  303
Other revenue from exchange transac�ons   108  387

 14 370 18 211

Sale of goods
General sales   122  50

 14 492 18 261

15. Investment income
Interest income
Investment account  2 444 1 426
Current accounts   398  423

 2 842 1 849

16. Government Grants and subsidies Unspent 

balance at 

beginning 

of year

Current year 

alloca�on/      

(refund)

Condi�ons 

met - 

recognized 

as income

Condi�ons 

not met - 

recognized 

as liability

2016 R000 R000 R000 R000
Programme funding: Employee cost  - 65 849 (65 849)  -
Programme funding: Direct subsidy  - 25 863 (25 863)  -
NSF 2 296 (2 295)  -  1
Other Government grants  605 ( 55) ( 316)  234

2 901 89 362 (92 028)  235

2015
Programme funding: Employee cost  - 53 866 (53 866)  -
Programme funding: Direct subsidy  - 20 679 (20 679)  -
Earmarked capital funding  - 8 554 (8 554)  -
NSF  162 34 081 (31 947) 2 296
Other Government grants 1 136  420 ( 951)  605

1 298 117 600 (115 997) 2 901

2016 2015
17. Other sponsorship R000 R000

Dona�on received   1  -
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2016 2015
R000 R000

18. Employee-related expenditure
Paid via College payroll
Employee related costs - Salaries 30 396 42 112
Employee related costs - UIF, pension, leave and medical benefits  703 1 610
Council remunera�on  127  63
Workmen's compensa�on  29  155
Housing allowances  -  131

31 255 44 071

Services-in-kind
Employee-related costs - Salaries 41 648 28 008
Employee-related costs - UIF, pension and medical benefits 6 568 3 503
Housing allowances 1 330  408
Travel, accommoda�on and other allowances  1 5 778

49 547 37 697

Total employee-related expenditure 80 802 81 768

Analysed as follows:
Paid via Persal from College programme funding

Lecturers engaged in Report 191 and NC(V) courses 29 963 31 177

Support staff engaged in Report 191 and NC(V) courses 16 743 11 324

Management remunera�on 2 841 1 731

49 547 44 232

Paid via College payroll

Lecturers engaged in Report 191 and NC(V) courses 11 051 13 654

Support staff engaged in Report 191 and NC(V) courses 9 944 12 348

Lecturers not engaged in Report 191 and NC(V) courses 7 741 8 116

Support staff not engaged in Report 191 and NC(V) courses 2 027 3 315

Student s�pends  365  40
Council remunera�on  127  63

31 255 37 536

As above 80 802 81 768

Funded

Lecturers engaged in Report 191 and NC(V) courses 39 567 36 906

Support staff engaged in Report 191 and NC(V) courses 22 780 14 049

Management remunera�on 2 841 1 731

Total funded 65 188 52 686

Unfunded

Lecturers engaged in Report 191 and NC(V) courses 9 188 16 040

Support staff engaged in Report 191 and NC(V) courses 5 934 12 939

Student s�pends  365  40
Council remunera�on  127  63

Total unfunded 15 614 29 082

Total employee-related expenditure 80 802 81 768
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2016 2015
R000 R000

19. Bad debt write-off and impairment
Bad debt wri�en-off 11 629  -
(Reversal)/impairment of student debt (3 671) 8 557
Impairment of other receivables 3 444  153

Total charge for year  11 402 8 710

20. Other opera�ng expenditure
Student residence meals  1 419 3 638
Student support services

S�pends  1 315 10 399
Educa�onal tours, sport events and other costs   654 1 500

Student bursaries  - 3 688
Programme-related costs  1 917 1 898
Telephone, postage, internet, network and communica�on  4 628 3 786
Security  4 273 4 206
Municipal services  3 993 3 610
Audit fees

Audit  1 733 2 632
Expenses   770  28

Professional fees
Outsourced student training  2 150 1 881
Accoun�ng services   100  900
Internal audit outsourced  -  175
Other professional services   164  37

Prin�ng and sta�onery  1 796 3 408
Insurance  1 042  935

Opera�ng lease charges
Buildings   331  256

Office equipment  1 864 1 515

Vehicle fuel and licences  1 087  901
Repairs and maintenance

Buildings and infrastructure   635  237
Vehicles   329  190
Computers and equipment   373  376

Travel and accommoda�on   968  961
Marke�ng   663  412

Staff recruitment, development and training   362  512

Finance charges   76  108

Other expenditure
Bank charges   251  236

Cleaning and consumables   941  758

Subscrip�on and membership fees   239  146

Capital items under R3 000   50  -

Uniforms, protec�ve clothing, health and safety   27  -

Other expenditure   256

Per statement of financial performance  34 406 49 329

21. Gain/(loss) on assets
Impairment of property  1 561  477
Movement on text books   748 ( 626)
Fair value gain of property (  549)  6
Gain on derecogni�on/disposal of assets (  30) ( 6)

 1 730 ( 149)
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2016 2015
R000 R000

22. Cash flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es
(Deficit)/surplus for year ( 1 377) 17 747
Adjusted for:
Programme funding - employee remunera�on ( 49 547) (53 866)
Employee remunera�on paid by DHET  49 547 53 866
Deprecia�on and impairment  8 326 6 843
Bad debt wri�en off and impairment  11 402 8 710
Interest income ( 2 842) (1 849)
Other gains/losses on assets   169 ( 626)
Changes in working capital
(Inrease)/decrease in inventories (  134) ( 97)
(Increase) in trade and other receivables from exchange transac�ons ( 2 540) (4 966)
(Increase) in other receivables from non-exchange transac�ons ( 9 148) (9 837)
(Decrease)/increase in unspent condi�onal grants ( 2 666) 1 603
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables ( 1 192) 7 719
(Decrease) in provision   210  -
Other movements (  9) ( 226)

 199 25 021

23. Prior period error
Occupa�onal programme revenue previously recognized 18 215
Correc�on of error ( 694)

Per note 14 17 521

24. Reclassifica�ons
Trade and other receivables

Balance reported previously 19 085

Add: So�ware licence fees prepaid  29

Per note 4 19 114

25. Opera�ng lease commitments

Office equipment
Up to 1 year 2 147 2 737
1 to 5 years   155 1 488

2 302 4 225

These leases were nego�ated in terms of the DHET procurement ini�a�ve.
Lease rentals are fixed and there were no con�ngent rentals.

Property
Up to 1 year  180  236
1 to 5 years  165  341

 345  577

26. Commitments
Approved and contracted for 8 197 10 242
Approved but not yet contracted for 7 693 10 859

15 890 21 101
To be financed as follows:
Financed by: Government grants 13 643 16 218
Financed with: Own resources 2 247 4 883

15 890 21 101

South Cape TVET College 2016 Annual Report

97



South Cape TVET College

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016
2016 2015
R000 R000

27. Con�ngent liabili�es

During 2015 Management terminated a service provider's service level agreement 

due to alledged breach of contract. The complainant is required to ini�ate 

arbitra�on proceedings as per the contract, but has yet to submit their statement 

of claim against the College. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of the dispute, 

a provision has not been recognized. 
9 968 8 719

The College is in a labour dispute with a former employee. Due to the uncertainty 

about the outcome of the ma�er, no provison has been recognized.

28. Risk management and financial instruments
Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of student debtors and College cash deposits with it's 

bank. The College banks with a major bank only.

Student debtors comprise a large number of accounts, most of which are not 

se�led within the agreed terms. 

Liquidity risk

The College's risk to liquidity is the result of funds to cover its future 

commitments. Liquidity risk is managed by an ongoing review of its cash resources 

and future commitments. Refer note 31 for further informa�on.

Interest rate risk
Cash invested in the money market is not exposed to a significant amount of 

interest rate risk.

Financial instruments

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 40 874 45 842

Financial liabili�es
Payables from exchange transac�ons 17 195 15 638
Loan  578 1 128

Total contractual undiscounted amount 17 773 16 766

Financial assets pledged as security
Cash secured for loan repayment  300 300

The carrying value of financial instruments approximates their fair value.

Financial liabili�es maturity analysis

Not later than one month 1 778 1 876

Later than one month but not later than three months 2 646 2 185

Later than three months but not later than one year 11 908 11 268

Later than one year but not later than five years 1 441 1 437

As above 17 773 16 766
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2016 2015

R000 R000

29. Related par�es

Members of key management

Ms. N Lichaba (Chairperson of council)

Mr. R Smit (Deputy Chairperson of council - Resigned 11 March 2016)

Mr. T Dazela (External councillor)

Mr. P Le Roux (External councillor - Resigned 9 October 2015)

Mr. S Peters (External councillor)

Ms. R Saptoe (External councillor - Resigned 12 June 2015)

Mr. M Cerfonteyn (External councillor - Resigned 2 September 2015)

Ms. N Gumede (External councillor)

Mr. N Cona (External councillor)

Mr. M Stratu (External councillor)

Mrs. C Phillips-Moorcro� (Internal councillor)

Mr. H Cronje (Internal councillor)

Mr. N Sokabo (Internal councillor)

Mr. Z Rawana (SRC Representa�ve)

Mr. J Kefile (SRC Representa�ve)

Ms. E Potgieter ( - Appointed August 2015)

Ms. T Terblanche (Deputy  Academic - Ac�ng in 2015 for 7 months)

Mr. M Booi (Deputy  Corporate Services - Appointed August 2015)

Mr. R Maharaj (Deputy  Innova�on & Development)

Mr. C Bellingan (Ac�ng Deputy  Finance - Appointed November 2016)

Ms. T Boshoff (Ac�ng Deputy  Academic - 7 months in 2015)

Mr. L Majola (Ac�ng Deputy  Corporate Services - 9 months in 2015)

Mr. A Gericke (Ac�ng Deputy  Finance - Resigned 31 July 2016)

Close family member of key management and council

Mr. C Terblanche - Programme Manager Business Studies - Husband of DP: Academic, Ms. T Terblanche

Related to Internal councillor, Mr. H Cornje:

Mr. R Heyneke - Senior Lecturer: George Campus, son-in-law.

Mr. J Cronje - Programme Manager: Occupa�onal, brother.

Ms. V Heyneke - Assistant Director: Student Administra�on, daughter.

Other related par�es

Minister of Higher Educa�on & Training

DHET - Department of Higher Educa�on (Na�onal Controlling en�ty)

Other TVET Colleges

SETA's 

NSFAS - Na�onal Student Financial Aid Scheme

Related party transac�ons

Key management personnel employee cost and council remunera�on

Aggregate remunera�on - FTE's: 6 (2015 - 6) 4 387 2 711

Close family of key management personnel employee cost

Travel & Subsistence  2  1

Remunera�on 2 156  340

2 158  341
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2016 2015
R000 R000

30. Events a�er the repor�ng date

Non-adjus�ng event

Value of equipment rental subject to compulsory no�ce period  -  555

31. Going concern

32. Net assets

33. Tax exemp�on

The College is exempt from income tax in terms of the Income tax act.

We draw a�en�on to the fact that the College has an accumulated surplus (Net assets) of R189,2m (2015: 

R186,4m). The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accoun�ng policies applicable to a going 

concern. The going concern basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future opera�ons and that the 

realisa�on of assets and se�lement of liabili�es and other obliga�ons will be met in the ordinary course of 

business.

The ability of the College to con�nue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant

of these is that the College is dependent on Programme funding from DHET and successful bursary applica�ons to

NSFAS, at a level which, when combined with other revenue generated by the College, is sufficient to fund the

opera�ons of the College.

In terms of the CET Act, the Minister may close a public college subject to certain condi�ons. In such a case, the net

assets of the College, comprising the accumulated surplus and reserves, will vest in the Minister a�er the

se�lement of all liabili�es.
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